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Report Item 

1: 

2a: 

Form FR Y-6 

Surrey Bancorp 
145 N. Renfro Street 

Mount Airy, NC 27030 
Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017 

The bank holding company prepares an annual report for its shareholders. Three 
copies of the annual report will be mailed at a later date. 

Organizational Chart 

SURREY 
BANCORP 
No Active LEI 

Mount Airy, NC 
Incorporated on 02/6/2003 in 

North Carolina 

100% 

Surrey Bank & Trust 
No Active LEI 

Mount Airy, NC 
Incorporated on 7/15/1 996 

in North Carolina 

100% 

Surrey Investment Services, Inc 
Mount Airy, NC 

Incorporated on 2/10/ 1998 
in North Carolina 

Surrey Bank & Trust and Surrey Bancorp are active corporations in North Carolina. Surrey Bank & 
Trust is wholly-owned by Surrey Bancorp. Surrey Bank & Trust and Surrey Bancorp applied for and 
received LE!s in 2015. Surrey Bank & Trust was registered as LEI 5493001BKOXBFJG00375 and 
Surrey Bancorp was registered as LEI 5493008REIE4IUR76156. The Bancorp filed a Form 15 with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 31, 2016 to deregister its common shares under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. As a result, we decided to allow our LEI registration to lapse 
intentionally. A Form FR Y-10 wasjiledfor Surrey Bancorp on 07/31/2017 that stated that the SEC 
reporting status was terminated. Another Form FR Y-10 was filed to remove the LE/for Surrey Bancorp 
and a third Form FR Y-10 was filed remove the LEI.from Surrey Bank & Trust. No other entities related 
to Surrey Bank & Trust or Surrey Bancorp ever applied for or received LE!s. 

2b: Domestic Branch Listing 

Domestic branch listing was submitted via email on February 13, 2018. 



Results: A list of branches for your depository institution: SURREY BANK & TRUST (IO_RSSO: 2483120) 

This depository institution is held by SURREY BANCORP (3163867) of MOUNT AIRY, NC. 

The data are as of 12/31/2017, Data reflects information that was received and processed through 01/04/2018 

Reyndli.atioft and Ve,tfkation 5tept 
1, In the Data Action column of each branch row, enter one or more of the actions specified below 

2. If required, enter the date in the Effective Date column 

Actions 

OK: If the branch information is correct, enter 'OK' in the Data Action column-

Change: If the branch information is incorrect or incomplete, revise the data, enter 'Change' in the Data Action column and the date when this information first became valid In the Effective Date column 

Close: If a branch listed was sold or closed, enter 'Close' in the Data Action column and the sale or closure date in the Effective Date column. 

Delete: If a branch listed was never owned by this depository institution, enter 'Delete' in the Data Action column 

Add: If a reportable branch is missing, insert a row, add the branch data, and enter 'Add' in the Data Action column and the opening or acquisition date in the Effective Date column. 

If printing this list, you may need to adjust your page setup fn MS Excel. Try using landscape orientation, page scaling, and/or legal sized paper. 

Submission Procedure 

When you are finished, send a saved COPY to your FRB contact See the detailed instructions on this site for more information. 

If you are e-mailing this to your FRB contact, put your institution name, city and state in the subject line of the e-mail. 

Note: 

To satisfy the FR Y-10 reporting requirements, you must also submit FR Y-10 Domestic Branch Schedules for each branch with a Data Action of Change, Close, Delete, or Add, 

The FR Y-10 report may be submitted in a hardcopy format or via the FR Y-10 Online application - https://ylOontine,federalreserve ,gov, 

• FDIC UNINUM, Office Number, and ID_RSSD columns are for reference only. Verification of these values is not required. 

D•taAction Effective Date e:nnch s«Ylce T•fae Brinda 10 RSso• Popufor Name StrttlAddress Citv State 

OK Full 5'_lVlCC!' tHNd OffJC(II 24113120 SURREY BAIIU TRUST 145 IIORTH R(NFRO STREIT MOUNT AIRY NC 

OK Full Service •979Clll2 llKIN BRAIICfl l9l CC CAMP ROAD EJJ(lN NC 

OK Ft.illStotvlc-C' 3300127 ROCKFORD STREET BRANCH 2QSO ROCKFORD ST MOUNT AIRY NC 
OK "1,flSoMc• l300l45 wt:ST P1NE STRl;ET BRANCH 1280 WEST PINE STREET MOUNT AIRY NC 

OK F"ullSr:rvk.e- S190l62 NORTH W1LK!S80RO BIWICH 1096 MAIN STIIHT NORTH WILKESBORO NC 

OK full Service 3300354 PlLOTMOUNTAIN &AANOl 6Sl 50UTH !<IY STI\EET PILOT MOUNTAIN NC 

OK F"u11SeM<e 2'7fil78 SlUART BRANCH 940W000lANI) ORN£ STUART VA 

Zip Code 

27030 

28621 
270]0 
27030 

28659 

27041 
24171 

County C:O.ntr, 
SURRY UNITED STATES 

SURRY UNITED STATES 

5URRY UNJTED STATES 

SURRY UNITED STATES 

WILKES UNITED STATES 

SURRY UNITED STATES 
PAJRJO( UNJTEDSTA_TES 

FOIC UNINUM 0 OffkeNumbt,:r'• HelHI Office H .. d 01roco 10 RSSo· Comm1GntJ 
Not Reaulred Not Required SURREY BANK & TRUST 2483120 
Not Reouired Not Reouired SURR.EY BANK & TRUST 2483.U.O 

Not Reau.ired Not Reau.ired SURREY SANK & TRUST 2483UO 

Not Reauired NQt R.caulrt'.d SURR!Y BAN~ & TRUST 2483120 
Not Reauired Not Reauired SURREY BANK & TRUST 2483120 
Not Re.a.uired Not Rei;i:uired SURR.EY BANK & TRUST 248312.0 
Not Requited Not Re<iuiied SU~MYBA.NK & BUST 248311D 



Report Item 3: Securities holders 
(1)(a)(b)(c) and (2)(a)(b)(c) 

Form FRY-6 
Surrey Bancorp 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Current securities holders with ownership, control or 
holdings of 5% or more with power to vote as of fiscal year 
ended 12-31-2017 

Security holders not listed in 3(1 )(a) through 3(1 )(c) that 
had ownership, control or holdings of 5% or more with 
power to vote during the fiscal year ended 12-31-2017 

(1)(c) (2)(c) 
(1)(a) (1)(b) Number and Percentage (2)(a) (2)(b) Number and Percentage 
Name & Address Country of Citizenship or of Each Class of Voting Name & Address Country of Citizenship or of Each Class of Voting 
(City, State, Country) Incorporation Securities (City, State, Country) Incorporation Securities 

Betty Wright USA 429,908 -11.74% NIA 
Mount Airy, NC Common Stock 

Tamra W . Thomas USA 469,884-13.30% 
Winston-Salem, NC Common Stock 

Edward C. Ashby, Ill USA 181,423 - 5.09% 
Mount Airy, NC Common Stock 



Form FR Y-6 
Surrey Bancorp 

Fiscal Year Ended December 31 , 2017 

Report Item 4: Insiders 
(1) (2) (3)(a) {b) (c) and (4l(a\ (bl (cl 

(2) (3){b) (3)(c) (4)(a) 
(1) Principal (3)(a) Title & Position with Title & Position with Percentage of 
Name, City, State, Occupation if other Title & Position with Subsidiaries Other Businesses Voting Shares in 
Country than with Sank Sank Holding (include names of (include names of Sank Holding 

Holding Company Company subsidiaries) other businesses) Company 
Eoward C Ashoy, N/A President and Chief President and Chief NIA 509% 
Ill Executive Officer Executive Officer of 
Mount Airy, NC Surrey Sank & 

Trust, President of 
Surrey Investment 
Services, Inc, and 
President of 
Freedom Finance, 
LLC 

Elizabeth Johnson Vice President of Director NIA Vice President of 325% 
Lovill Town & Country Town & Country 
Mount Airy, NC Builders, Inc, Builders, Inc , 

Owner, Lovill 
Enternrises 

Robert H Moody President of Moody Director and N/A President of Moody 371% 
Mount Airy, NC Funeral Services, Chairman Funeral Services, 

Inc., Owner, Moody Inc .. Owner, Moody 
Investments Co , Investments Co , 
LLC LLC 

(4)(c) 
List names of other 
companies (include 
partnerships) if 25% 
or more of voting 
securities are held 

(4)(b) (Lisi names of 
Percentage of Voting companies and 
Shares in Subsidiaries percentage of 
(include names of voting securities 
subsidiaries) held) 
None NIA 

None High Cotton 
Interiors, LLC 
(100%) 

None Moody Funeral 
Services, Inc. 
(100%) Moody 
Investments Co., 
LLC (100%) 



(1) (2) (3)(a) (3)(b) (3)(c) (4)(a) (4)(b) (4)(c) 

F Eugene Rees President of F. Director and Vice- N/A President of F. 4.04% None F. Rees Clotning 
Mount Airy, NC Rees Clotning Chairman Rees Clothing, (100%). 

President of Professional Rental 
Professional Rental Services (100%) 
Services and and REF Properties 
Owner of REF (100%) 
Properties 

Tamra W, Thomas Retirees Direclor NIA N/A 13.30% None NIA 
Winston-Salem, NC 

Tom G Webb Commercial Real Director NIA Commercial Real 1.70% None Mayberry RFD, Inc 
Mount Airy, NC Estate Developer Estate Developer (100%), Parkway 

and Consultant Associates, LLC, 
(33,33%), Fairmont 
Associates, LLC 
(80%), Westwood 
Partners, LLC 
(62.5%), Araneum, 
LLC (50%) 

Buddy Williams President of Ten Director NIA President ofT en 219% None Ten Oaks, LLC 
Stuart, VA Oaks, LLC Oaks, LLC (100%), Williams & 

Birkett, LLC (100%} 
Betty Wright Retired Principal Securities NIA N/A 11 ,74% None NIA 
Mount Airv. NC Holder 
Pedro A. Pequeno, NIA Senior Vice Senior V-PIChlef NIA 084% None NIA 
II President Lending Officer of 
Mount Airy, NC Surrey Bank & 

Trust, Senior Vice-
President of 
Freedom Finance, 
LLC 

Mark H Towe NIA Senior Vice Senior V-P1Cn1ef NIA 0.49% None NIA 
Mount Airy, NC President and Financial Officer of 

Treasurer Surrey Bank & 
Trust, Exec V-P of 
Surrey Investment 
Services, Inc and 
Treasurer of 
Freedom Finance, 
LLC 
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Dear Shareholder: 

Surrey Bancorp continues to exceed industry standards for profitability, capital adequacy and asset quality. Surrey 
Bancorp's return on average assets was 1.07 percent and the return on average equity was 7 .15 percent. Based on our 
financial performance, the Board of Directors declared a special dividend of $.38 per common share at year-end, an 
increase of 5.6 percent over the 2016 dividend. The dividend payout totaled 47.32 percent of 2017 earnings. 

The Company reported net income of $3,026,907 or $.73 per fully diluted common share in 2017. Net income 
decreased 15.9 percent versus the prior year due to a reduction in the valuation of net deferred tax assets totaling 
$625,651. The reduction was caused by the lowering of the Company's federal income tax rate from 34 percent to 21 
percent effective in 2018. Although this one-time event negatively affected profits in 2017, it is anticipated the 
Company will recover the write-down through improved after tax income in 2018. Operating performance was solid. 
Net interest income rose 1.63% percent to $11,198,022, primarily due to improvement in interest rates on the 
Company's short term investments. Non-interest income decreased to $2,686,128 versus $2,843,811 in the prior year. 
This 5.5 percent reduction was attributable to life insurance proceeds from Bank Owned Life Insurance in excess of 
the cash surrender value totaling $315,754, which was recorded in 2016. There was a recapture of$44,866 in the loan 
loss provision in 2017, versus a provision of$401,403 in 2016, primarily due to an improvement in loan quality. Non­
interest expenses increased 4.4 percent during the year to $8,351,960. A significant portion of the rise was attributable 
to costs associated enhancements to the Company's cybersecurity program, investment in new technology, upgrades 
to equipment, and fees associated with our government lending programs. 

Total assets at year-end were $300,509,941, an increase of 8.45 percent over the prior year. Total deposits grew I 0.1 
percent, totaling $253,655,262 at the end of the year. Net loans at year-end were $220,395,992, a 5.6 percent increase 
over the prior year. Loan loss reserves were 1.72 percent of outstanding loans at year-end. Non-performing assets 
totaled .16 percent of total assets at the end of2017. The percentage of outstanding loans with government guarantees 
was 22.1 percent of net loans at year-end. 

In addition to our strong financial performance, 2017 was full of accomplishments. The Board of Directors declared 
an annual dividend of $.38. An annual dividend has been paid for seven consecutive years and has increased every 
year. Recently, the Board of Directors announced their intention to pay common stock dividends on a quarterly basis. 
In the second quarter of 2016, the company completed its reclassification of common stock to de-register from the 
Securities and Exchange Commission. The cost savings from this action allowed the company to reallocate its 
resources to upgrade our cybersecurity programs. Industry experts and regulators consider enhanced cybersecurity an 
essential part of the Company's operations. The Company also invested in new technology offerings for deposit 
customers that will be brought to market in the second quarter of 2018. In December of 2017, the Company converted 
its Loan Production Office in North Wilkesboro, North Carolina into our seventh full service branch. 

The banking industry is enjoying "good times." The lowering of the federal income tax rate and the general 
improvement in our economic environment are producing higher trading and acquisition valuations for the Company's 
stock. 

The continuing consolidation of banks through out-of-state acquisition plus closing of full service branch bank 
closings in our markets provide us with opportunity to organically grow the company. Over the past three years, the 
Company has made significant investment in the western portion of Surry County and Wilkes County. Our focus will 
be concentrated on growing shareholder value by increasing market share in these newer markets as well as our 
traditional markets. We will accomplish this through superior customer service and product offerings comparable to 
our larger competitors. 

On behalf of the employees, management and Board of Directors of Surrey Bancorp, thank you for your continuing 
support. 

Edward C. Ashby, III 
President & CEO 



Financial Highlights Summary1 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Summary of Operations 

Interest income $ 12,096 $ 11,924 $ 11,104 $ 10,816 $ 10,539 
Interest expense 898 905 I 135 1 350 I 505 

Net interest income 11,198 11,019 9,969 9,466 9,034 
Provision for loan losses (45) 402 242 212 320 
Other income 2,686 2,844 2,718 3,255 2,907 
Other expense 8,352 8,003 7,659 7,315 6,972 
Income taxes 2 550 I 862 1 725 1.751 I 760 

Net income 3,027 3,596 3,061 3,443 2,889 
Preferred stock dividends declared (183) (183) (183) (183) (183) 

Net income available to 
common stockholders $ 2 844 $ 3 41'3 $ 2 878 $ 3 260 $ 2 706 

Per Common Share Data 

Net income: 
Basic $ 0.80 $ 0.96 $ 0.81 $ 0.92 $ 0.76 
Diluted 0.73 0.86 0.73 0.82 0.69 

Cash dividends declared 0.38 0.36 0.27 0.22 0.21 
Book value per common share 10.80 10.38 9.80 9.27 8.57 

Balance Sheet 

Loans, net $ 220,396 $ 208,690 $ 197,905 $ 189,549 $ 179,909 
Investment securities available for sale 4,933 5,233 5,341 4,364 4,550 
Total assets 300,510 277,102 257,777 253,201 240,919 
Deposits 253,655 230,262 212,688 206,667 195,801 
Stockholders' equity 42,046 40,537 38,671 36,771 34,218 
Interest-earning assets 275,908 254,968 237,385 232,441 223,497 
Interest-bearing liabilities 178,826 170,672 160,819 159,947 160,838 

Selected Ratios 

Return on average assets 1.07% 1.37% 1.17% 1.38% 1.22% 
Return on average equity 7.15% 8.91% 8.01% 9.65% 8.59% 
Dividends declared on common stock 

as a percent of net income available 
to common stockholders 47.32% 37.33% 33.30% 23.95% 27.50% 

1. In thousands of dollars, except for per share data 

2 



Consolidated Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 

Assets 

Cash and due from banks $ 7,480,751 $ 6,360,211 
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 49,350,397 39,821,484 
Federal funds sold 1,229,096 1,223,349 
Investment securities available for sale 4,932,606 5,232,842 
Restricted equity securities 303,880 402,189 
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $3,848,006 

in 2017 and $3,687,500 in 2016 220,395,992 208,690,443 
Property and equipment, net 6,799,556 5,451,686 
Foreclosed assets 167,452 I 77,209 
Accrued interest and other income 1,208,613 1,084,376 
Goodwill 120,000 120,000 
Bank owned life insurance 6,620,119 6,436,040 
Other assets 1 901.479 2,102,556 

Total assets $ 300 509,941 $ 277 102 385 

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 

Liabilities 
Deposits: 

Noninterest-bearing $ 74,829,032 $ 61,339,714 
Interest-bearing I 78,826,230 168,921,831 

Total deposits 253,655,262 230,261,545 

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 1,750,000 
Dividends payable 1,391,665 1,320,418 
Accrued interest payable 61,360 54,740 
Other liabilities 3,356,059 ~. 178 711 

Total liabilities 258,464,346 236,565,414 

Commitments and contingencies - Note 15 

Stockholders' equity 
Preferred stock, 1,000,000 shares authorized, 

189,356 shares of Series A, issued and outstanding with no par value, 
4.5% convertible non-cumulative, perpetual; with a liquidation 
value of $14.00 per share; 2,620,325 2,620,325 
181,154 shares of Series D, issued and outstanding with no par value, 
5.0% convertible non-cumulative, perpetual; with a liquidation 
value of $7 .08 per share; 1,248,482 1,248,482 

Common stock, 9,000,000 shares authorized at no par value; 
3,446,640 and 3,445,052 shares issued and outstanding at 
December 31, 201 7 and 2016, respectively 10,784,861 10,767,664 

Common stock, Class A, 1,000,000 shares authorized at no par value; 
87,095 shares issued and outstanding 1,085,461 1,085,461 

Retained earnings 26,364,658 24,866,607 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (58,192) (51,568) 

Total stockholders' equity 42,045.595 40,536,971 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 300 509 241 $ 277 102 385 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Consolidated Statements of Income 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Interest income 
Loans and fees on loans 
Federal funds sold 
Investment securities, taxable 
Investment securities, dividends 
Interest-bearing deposits with banks 

Total interest income 

Interest expense 
Deposits 
Federal funds purchased and securities 

sold under agreements to repurchase 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

Total interest expense 
Net interest income 

Provision/or (recapture of) loan losses 
Net interest income after provision 

for loan losses 

Noninterest income 
Service charges on deposit accounts 
Fees on loans delivered to correspondents 
Other service charges and fees 
Loss on sale of investment securities 
Income from bank owned life insurance 
Insurance commissions 
Brokerage commissions 
Other operating income 
Life insurance proceeds 

Total noninterest income 

Noninterest expense 
Salaries and employee benefits 
Occupancy expense 
Equipment expense 
Data processing 
Foreclosed assets, net 
Postage, printing and supplies 
Professional fees 
FDIC insurance premiums 
Other expense 

Total noninterest expense 
Net income before income taxes 

Income tax expense 
Net income 

Pref erred stock dividends 
Net income available to common stockholders 

Basic earnings per common share 
Diluted earnings per common share 
Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 
Diluted weighted avert1ge common shares outstanding 
Dividends declared per common share 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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2017 2016 

$ 11,567,916 $ 11,700,992 
11,882 5,228 
78,588 89,916 

649 
438 069 127 457 

12,096,455 11,924.242 

872,239 828,548 

12 5 
26 182 76.839 

898 433 905 392 
11,198,022 11,018,850 

(44,866) 401.403 

11.242,888 10 617 447 

671,787 651,997 
136,293 121,425 
767,018 699,844 

(33,127) 
184,079 190,758 
746,443 720,658 

78,907 65,154 
101,601 111,348 

315 754 
2,686. 128 2.843.811 

4,428,740 4,410,386 
539,739 570,958 
459,551 310,745 
565,854 536,229 

5,534 74,927 
177,218 163,876 
342,566 205,806 

73,953 I 13,664 
1.758.805 1,616,230 
8,351,960 8,002,821 
5,577,056 5,458,437 

2,550, 142 1,861,809 
3,026,907 3,596,628 
(183,423) (183,423) 

.$__2 813 181 $ 31132Q5 

$ Q.80 $ Q 26 
$ Q :Z3 $ Q 86 

3.533 132 3 512126 
:l 16:Z Q:Z:l :1126 126 

$ Q.38 $ Q 36 



Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Net income 

Other comprehensive loss: 
Investment securities available for sale 

Unrealized holding gains (losses) 
Tax effect 

Reclassification oflosses recognized in net income 
Tax effect 

Comprehensive income 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

$ 

$ 

5 

2017 2016 

3,026,907 $ 3,596,628 

4,996 (72,640) 
(11,620) 26,112 

33,127 
(11,263) 

(6.624) (24,664) 
3.02Q.283 $ 3 521 9.M 



Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 ,md 2016 

Accumulated 
Preferred Other 

Stock Common Stock Class A Common Stock Retained Comprehensive 
Amount Shares Amount Shares Amount Earnin_g_s lncome(Loss) Total 

Balance January 1, 2016 $ 3,868,807 3,549,665 $ 12,101,480 $ $ 22,727,587 (2'.fi,904) $ 38,670,970 

Net income 3,596,628 3,596,628 

Other comprehensive loss (24,664) (24,664) 

Common stock repurchased (17,518) (223,355) (223,355) 

Reclassification of common stock to Class 
A common stock, net (87,095) (1,110,461) 87,095 1,085,461 (25 ,000) 

Dividends declared on Series A convertible 
preferred stock ($.63 per share) (119,294) (119,294) 

Dividends declared on Series D convertible 
preferred stock ($.35 per share) (64,129) (64,129) 

Dividends declared on Class A stock 
($0.39 per share) (33,967) (33,967) 

Dividends declared on common stock 
($ 36 per share) (1,240,218) (1 ,240,218) 

Balance December 31, 2016 $ 3,868,807 3,445,052 $ 10,767,664 87,095 $ 1,085,461 $ 24,866,607 $ (51,568) $ 40,536,971 

Net income 3,026,907 3,026,907 

Other comprehensive loss (6,624) (6,624) 

Common stock options exercised 1,588 17,197 17,197 

Dividends declared on Series A 
convertible preferred stock ($.63 per 
share) (119,294) (119,294) 

Dividends declared on Series D 
convertible preferred stock ($.35 per 
share) (64,129) (64,129) 

Dividends declared on Class A stock 
($0 41 per share) (35,709) (35,709) 

Dividends declared on common stock 
($ 38 per share) (1,309,724) (1,309,724) 

Balance, December 31, 2017 $ 3,868,807 3,446,640 $ 10,784,861 87,095 $ 1,085,461 $ 26,364,658 (58,$92) $ 42,045,595 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income 

to net cash provided by operations: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Provision for loan losses 
(Gain) loss on the sale of foreclosed assets 
Loss on the sale of investments 
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 
Deferred income taxes 
Amortization of premiums on securities, net 

of accretion of discounts 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Accrued interest and other income 
Increase in cash surrender value of life insurance 
Bank-owned life insurance death benefit in excess of CSV 
Other assets 
Accrued interest payable 
Other liabilities 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Net increase in interest-bearing deposits with banks 
Net increase in federal funds sold 
Purchases of investment securities 
Maturities of investment securities 
Purchases of restricted equity securities 
Redemption of restricted equity securities 
Net increase in loans 
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities 
Proceeds from the sale of foreclosed assets 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 
Purchase of bank-owned life insurance 
Life insurance proceeds 
Purchases of property and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Net increase in deposits 
Maturities oflong-tenn debt 
Dividends paid on preferred stock 
Dividends paid on common stock 
Common stock options exercised 
Repurchase of common shares 
Recapitalization cost incurred 

Net cash provided by financing activities 
Net increase in cash and due from banks 

Cash and due from banks, beginning 
Cash and due from banks, ending 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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$ 

2017 2016 

3,026,907 $ 3,596,628 

318,728 311,395 
(44,866) 401,403 

(I, 143) 32,773 
33,127 

5,018 73,184 
305,647 (43,255) 

(350) (1,911) 

(124,237) (212) 
(184,079) (190,758) 

(315,754) 
(116,190) 28,358 

6,620 (36,892) 
177.348 607 361 

3.369.403 4 495 44-7 

(9,528,913) (6,900,359) 
(5,747) (5,548) 

(4,999,399) 
305,582 4,505,861 
(18,591) (4,590) 
116,900 

(11,660,683) (11,282,940) 
530,710 

10,900 270,459 
310 

(1,500,000) 
695,811 

(1,671.616) (503,509) 
(22.452.168) (19.193.194) 

23,393,717 17,573,584 
(1,750,000) (1,000,000) 

(183,423) (183,423) 
(1,274,186) (958,409) 

17,197 
(223,355) 

(25.000) 
20.203.303 15.183.397 

1,120,540 485,650 



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, continued 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

Supplemental disclosures 
Interest paid 
Income taxes paid 
Loans transferred to foreclosed properties 
Reclassification of common stock to Class A common stock, net 
Cash dividends declared but not paid 
Change in unrealized losses on investment securities available for sale, net 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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$ 
$ 
$ 

2017 2016 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Organization 

Surrey Bancorp (the "Company") began operation on May I, 2003, and was created for the purpose of acquiring all the 
outstanding shares of common stock of Surrey Bank & Trust. Shareholders of the Bank received six shares of Surrey 
Bancorp common shares for every five shares of Surrey Bank & Trust common shares owned. The Company is subject 
to regulation by the Federal Reserve. The Company filed a Form 15 with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(the "SEC") on August 31 , 2016, to deregister its common shares under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. As a 
result of the 2012 passage ofH.R. 3606, the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the "JOBS Act"), the Company 
was eligible to deregister its common shares because it has fewer than 1,200 holders ofrecord. Upon the filing of the 
Form 15, the Company's obligation to file certain reports with the SEC, including Forms 10-K, 10-Q and 8-K and 
other filing requirements terminated upon the effectiveness of the deregistration. 

Surrey Bank & Trust (the "Bank") was organized and incorporated under the laws of the State of North Carolina on July 
15, 1996, and commenced operations on July 22, 1996. The Bank currently serves Surry County, North Carolina and 
Patrick County, Virginia and surrounding areas through six banking offices. As a state chartered bank, which is not a 
member of the Federal Reserve, the Bank is subject to regulation by the State of North Carolina Banking Commission 
and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

Surrey Investment Services, Inc. ("Subsidiary") was organized and incorporated under the laws of the State of North 
Carolina on February I 0, 1998. The subsidiary provides insurance services through SB&T Insurance and investment 
advice and brokerage services through LPL Financial. 

On July 31, 2000, Surrey Bank & Trust formed Freedom Finance, LLC (originally named Friendly Finance, LLC) a 
subsidiary operation specializing in the purchase of sales finance contracts from local automobile dealers. Freedom 
Finance, LLC was liquidated and closed in July of 2016. The loans were purchased net of their reserve for Joan losses 
resulting in no gain or loss on the sale. 

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company and subsidiaries follow U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles and general practices within the financial services industry. Following is a summary of the more significant 
policies. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Management believes the policies with respect to the methodology for the determination of the allowance for loan 
losses, and asset impairment judgments, including the recoverability of intangible assets involve a higher degree of 
complexity and require management to make difficult and subjective judgments which often require assumptions or 
estimates about highly uncertain matters. Changes in these judgments, assumptions or estimates could cause reported 
results to differ materially . These critical policies and their application are periodically reviewed with the Audit 
Committee and the Board of Directors. 

Principles of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the Bank, and Subsidiaries. All significant 
intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change relate to the determination of the allowance for 
loan losses and the valuation of real estate acquired in connection with foreclosures or in satisfaction of loans. In 
connection with the determination of the allowances for loan and foreclosed real estate losses, management obtains 
independent appraisals for significant properties. 

9 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Use of Estimates, continued 

Substantially, all of the Company's loan portfolio consists of loans in its market area. Accordingly, the ultimate 
collectability of a substantial portion of the Company's loan portfolio and the recovery of a substantial portion of the 
carrying amount of foreclosed real estate are susceptible to changes in local market conditions. The regional economy 
is diverse, but influenced to an extent by the manufacturing and agricultural segments. 

While management uses available info,mation to recognize loan and foreclosed real estate losses, future additions to the 
allowances may be necessary based on changes in local economic conditions. In addition, regulatory agencies, as a part 
of their routine examination process, periodically review the Company's allowances for loan and foreclosed real estate 
losses. Such agencies may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowances based on their judgments about 
information available to them at the time of their examinations. Because of these factors, it is reasonably possible that 
the allowances for loan and foreclosed real estate losses may change materially in the near term. 

Cash and Due from Banks 

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are defined as those amounts 
included in the balance sheet caption "cash and due from banks." The Company maintains due from accounts with 
correspondent banks. During the normal course of business, the Company may have cash deposits with these banks 
that are in excess of federally insured limits. 

Interest-bearing Deposits with Banks 

Interest-bearing deposits with banks mature within one year and are carried at cost. These deposits are primarily at the 
Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, which sweeps excess funds out nightly and invests 
the funds in accounts that pay a daily rate that mirrors the federal funds rate. Other deposits included in this category are 
money market accounts and short-term certificates of deposit issued through the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry 
Service ("CDARS"). 

Securities Held to Maturity 

Bonds, notes, and debentures for which the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are reported 
at cost, adjusted for premiums and discounts that are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the 
period to maturity or to call dates. No securities held by the Company for the periods presented were classified as held 
to maturity. 

Securities Available for Sale 

Available for sale securities are reported at fair value and consist of bonds, notes, debentures, and certain equity securities 
not classified as trading securities or as held to maturity securities. 

Unrealized holding gains and losses, net of tax, on available for sale securities are reported as a net amount in a separate 
component of stockholders' equity. Realized gains and losses on the sale of available for sale securities are determined 
using the specific-identification method and are recorded on a trade-date basis. Premiums and discounts are recognized 
in interest income using the interest method over the period to maturity or to call dates. Declines in the fair value of 
individual held to maturity and available for sale securities below cost that are other than temporary are reflected as write­
downs of the individual securities to fair value. 

Related write-downs are included in earnings as realized losses. In determining whether other than temporary impairment 
exists, management considers many factors, including (I) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has 
been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and the ability of 
the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in 
fair value. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Loans Held for Sale 

Government guaranteed loans originated in the normal course of business are sometimes sold into the secondary market. 
These sales are of the guaranteed portion of the loans only. Loans that carry variable rates, which eliminate the market 
risk to the Bank, are carried at cost. Fixed rate loans are carried at the lower of cost or market. There were no loans held 
for sale at December 3 I, 2017 and 2016. 

Loans Receivable 

Loans receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay­
off are reported at their outstanding principal amount adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any 
defetTed fees or costs on originated loans and unamortized premiums or discounts on purchased loans . 

Loan origination fees and certain direct origination costs are capitalized and recognized as an adjustment of the yield of 
the related loan using the interest method. Discounts and premiums on any purchased residential real estate loans are 
amortized to income using the interest method over the remaining period to contractual maturity, adjusted for anticipated 
prepayments. Discounts and premiums on any purchased consumer loans are recognized over the expected lives of the 
loans using methods that approximate the interest method. 

Interest is accrued and credited to income based on the principal amount outstanding. The accrual of interest on impaired 
loans is discontinued when, in management's opinion, the b01rnwer may be unable to meet payments as they become 
due. When the interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid accrued interest is reversed. Interest income is subsequently 
recognized only to the extent cash payments are received. Payments received on nonaccrual loans are first applied to 
principal and any residual amounts are then applied to interest. When facts and circumstances indicate the borrower has 
regained the ability to meet the required payments, the loan is returned to accrual status. Past due loans are determined 
on the basis of contractual terms. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses 
charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectability of a 
loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. 

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's periodic 
review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, 
adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and 
prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to 
significant revision as more information becomes available. 

The allowance consists of specific, general and qualitative components. The specific component relates to loans that 
are classified as impaired. For loans that are classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted 
cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of that 
loan. The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on historical loss experience adjusted for 
qualitative factors. A qualitative component is maintained to cover uncertainties that could affect management's 
estimate of probable losses. The unallocated component of the allowance reflects the margin of imprecision inherent 
in the underlying assumptions used in the methodologies for estimating specific and general losses in the portfolio. 

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be 
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan 
agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and 
the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant 
payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance 
of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances 
surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior 
payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Allowance for Loan Losses, continued 

Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of 
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair 
value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent. Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans are 
collectively evaluated for impainnent. Accordingly, the Company does not separately identify individual consumer and 
residential Joans for impainnent disclosures. 

Property and Equipment 

Land is carried at cost. Premises, furniture and equipment, and leasehold improvements are carried at cost, Jess 
accumulated depreciation and amortization computed principally by the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Foreclosed Assets 

Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Years 

10-40 
3-25 

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are to be sold and are initially recorded at the lower of the 
investment in the loan or fair value less anticipated cost to sell at the date of foreclosure establishing a new cost basis. 
After foreclosure, valuations are periodically perfonned by management, and the assets are carried at the lower of 
carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Revenue and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation 
allowance are included in foreclosed asset expense. 

Goodwill 

Goodwill consists of premiums paid on acquisitions of insurance agencies. Goodwill is evaluated for impairment on an 
annual basis. Any impainnent is charged against income in the period of impainnent. 

Employee Benefit Plans 

The Company has a defined contribution plan qualifying under IRS Code Section 40l{k). Employee contributions are 
matched by the Company up to the first six percent of an employee's contribution. The Company match is expensed as 
incurred. 

The Company has a noncontributory, nonqualified supplemental executive retirement plan ("SERP") covering certain 
executive employees. The plan calls for monthly payments payable for the life of the executive, generally beginning at 
the age of 65. The SERP costs, which are actuarially determined and recorded on an unfunded basis, are charged to 
current operations and credited to a liability account on the consolidated balance sheets. 

The Company has a deferred compensation plan under which directors may elect to defer their directors' fees. 
Participating directors receive an additional 30% matching contribution from the Company. Benefit payments are paid 
for a specific number of years, generally beginning at age 65. The deferred compensation cost, including the Company's 
matching contribution, are charged to current operations and credited to a liability account on the consolidated balance 
sheets. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note I. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Stock-based Compensation 

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with the provisions of Financial Accounting 
Standards Board ("F ASB") ASC ("Accounting Standards Codification") 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation. 
Under the fair value recognition provisions of this statement, stock-based compensation is measured at the grant date 
based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the requisite service 
period, which is the vesting period. 

Transfers of Financial Assets 

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over 
transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when (I) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee 
obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the 
transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an 
agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. 

Income Taxes 

Income tax expense is based on amounts reported in the statements of income (after exclusion of non-taxable income 
such as interest on state and municipal securities) and consists of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes on temporary 
differences in the recognition of income and expense for tax and financial statement purposes. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are included in the financial statements at cmTently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which 
the deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are enacted, 
deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through income tax expense. 

Deferred income tax liability relating to unrealized appreciation (or the defetTed tax asset in the case of unrealized 
depreciation) on investment securities available for sale is recorded in other liabilities (assets). Such unrealized 
appreciation or depreciation is recorded as an adjustment to equity in the financial statements and not included in income 
dete1mination until realized. Accordingly, the resulting defeffed income tax liability or asset is also recorded as an 
adjustment to equity. 

The Company has adopted ASU 2018-02, "Reclassification of Ce1tain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Income" which is considered a change in accounting principle. Because the required adjustment of 
defe1Ted taxes is required to be included in income from continuing operations, the tax effects of items within 
accumulated other comprehensive income (commonly referred to as "stranded" tax effects) would not reflect the 
appropriate tax rate. Adoption of this ASU eliminates the "stranded" tax effects associated with the change in the federal 
corporate income tax rate in the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017. 

Basic Earnings per Common Share 

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing income available to common stockholders by the weighted 
average number of common shares outstanding during the period, after giving retroactive effect to stock splits and 
dividends. 

Diluted Earnings per Common Share 

The computation of diluted earnings per common share is similar to the computation of basic earnings per share except 
that the denominator is increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding 
if dilutive potential common shares had been issued. The numerator is adjusted for any changes in income that would 
result from the assumed conversion of those potential common shares. 

Comprehensive Income 

Comprehensive income consists of net income plus certain other changes in assets and liabilities that are reported as 
separate components of stockholders' equity rather than as income or expense. The Company's other comprehensive 
income only consists of adjustments for unrealized gains or losses on investment securities available-for-sale. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Advertising Cost 

The Company incurred marketing and advertising cost of $124,984 and $105,589 for the years ended December 31, 
2017 and 2016, respectively. The amounts are expensed as incurred and included in the statements of income under 
other expense. 

Off-Balance Sheet Credit-Related Financial Instruments 

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, including commitments 
under line of credit arrangements, commercial letters of credit, and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments 
are recorded when they are funded. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

FASB ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure", requires disclosure of fair value information about 
financial instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet. In cases where quoted market prices are not 
available, fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are 
significantly affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. In that 
regard, the derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many 
cases, could not be realized in immediate settlement of the instruments. Certain financial instruments and all 
nonfinancial instruments are excluded from disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value amounts 
presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company. 

Reclassification 

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years' financial statements to place them on a comparable basis 
with the current year. Net income and stockholders' equity previously reported were not affected by these 
reclassifications. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

The following is a summary ofrecent authoritative pronouncements: 

In January 2016, the F ASB amended the Financial Instruments topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to address 
certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of financial instruments. The amendments will 
be effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods within those fiscal years. The 
Company will apply the guidance by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet as of the beginning 
of the fiscal year of adoption. The amendments related to equity securities without readily determinable fair values will 
be applied prospectively to equity investments that exist as of the date of adoption of the amendments. The Company 
does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In February 2016, the FASB issued new guidance to change accounting for leases and that will generally require most 
leases to be recognized on the balance sheet. The new lease standard only contains targeted changes to accounting by 
lessors, however, lessees will be required to recognize most leases in their balance sheets as lease liabilities for lease 
payments and right-of-use assets representing the lessee's rights to use the underlying assets for the lease terms for lease 
arrangements longer than 12 months. Under this approach, a lessee will account for most existing capital/finance leases 
as Type A leases and most existing operating leases as Type B leases. Type A and Type B leases have unique accounting 
and disclosure requirements. Existing sale-leaseback guidance, including guidance for real estate, will be replaced with 
a new model applicable to both lessees and lessors. The new guidance will be effective for fiscal years (and interim 
periods within those fiscal years) beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted for all companies and 
organizations. Management is currently analyzing the impact of the adoption of this guidance on the Company's financial 
statements, including assessing changes that might be necessary to information technology systems, processes and 
internal controls to capture new data and address changes in financial reporting. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements, continued 

In March 2016, the FASB issued guidance to simplify several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment 
award transactions including the income tax consequences, the classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, 
and the classification on the statement of cash flows. Additionally, the guidance simplifies two areas specific to 
entities other than public business entities allowing them apply a practical expedient to estimate the expected term for 
all awards with performance or service conditions that have certain characteristics and also allowing them to make a 
one-time election to switch from measuring all liability-classified awards at fair value to measuring them at intrinsic 
value. The amendments will be effective for the Company for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and 
interim periods within those annual periods. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect 
on its financial statements. 

In April 2016, the F ASB amended the Revenue from Contracts with Customers topic of the Accounting Standards 
Codification to clarify the implementation guidance on principal versus agent considerations and address how an entity 
should assess whether it is the principal or the agent in contracts that include three or more parties. 

The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The 
Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In May 2016 the FASB amended the Revenue from Contracts with Customers topic of the Accounting Standards 
Codification to clarify guidance related to collectability, noncash consideration, presentation of sales tax, and transition. 
The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The 
Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In June 2016, the F ASB issued guidance to change the accounting for credit losses and modify the impairment model for 
certain debt securities. The amendments will be effective for the Company for reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2020. The Company is currently evaluating the effect that implementation of the new standard will have 
on its financial position, results of operations, and cash flows 

In August 2016, the FASB amended the Statement of Cash Flows topic ofthe Accounting Standards Codification to 
clarify how certain cash receipts and cash payments are presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. The 
amendments will be effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods 
within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these 
amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In November 2016, the FASB amended the Statement of Cash Flows topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to 
clarify how restricted cash is presented and classified in the statement of cash flows. The amendments will be effective 
for the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning 
after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material 
effect on its financial statements. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note I. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, continued 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements, continued 

In December 2016, the F ASB issued technical corrections and improvements to the Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers Topic. These corrections make a limited number of revisions to several pieces of the revenue recognition 
standard issued in 2014. The effective date and transition requirements for the technical corrections will be effective for 
the Company for annual periods beginning after December I 5, 2018, and interim periods within annual reporting periods 
beginning after December I 5, 2019. The Company will apply the guidance using a full retrospective approach. The 
Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

Jn January 2017, the F ASB amended the Goodwill and Other Topic of the Accounting Standards Codification to simplify 
the accounting for goodwill impairment for public business entities and other entities that have goodwill reported in their 
financial statements and have not elected the private company alternative for the subsequent measurement of goodwill. 
The amendment removes Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test. A goodwill impairment will now be the amount by 
which a reporting unit's carrying value exceeds its fair value, not to exceed the carrying amount of goodwill. The 
effective date and transition requirements for the technical corrections will be effective for the Company for reporting 
periods beginning after December I 5, 2020. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual goodwill impairment tests 
performed on testing dates after January 1, 2017. The Company does not expect these amendments to have a material 
effect on its financial statements. 

In March 2017, the FASB amended the requirements in the Compensation-Retirement Benefits Topic of the 
Accounting Standards Codification related to the income statement presentation of the components of net periodic benefit 
cost for an entity's sponsored defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans. The amendments will be effective 
for the Company for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted. The 
Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

Jn May 2017, the FASB amended the requirements in the Compensation-Stock Compensation Topic of the 
Accounting Standards Codification related to changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award. The 
amendments provide guidance about which changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award require 
an entity to apply modification accounting. The amendments will be effective for the Company for annual periods, 
and interim periods within those annual periods, beginning after December I 5,2017. Early adoption is permitted. The 
Company does not expect these amendments to have a material effect on its financial statements. 

In February 20 I 8, the F ASB issued (20 I 8-02), Income Statement (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects 
from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income, which requires companies to reclassify the stranded effects in other 
comprehensive income to retained earnings as a result of the change in the tax rates under the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. 
The amendments will be effective for the Company for interim and annual periods beginning after December I 5, 
2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Company does not except these amendments to have a material effect on its 
financial statements. 

Other accounting standards that have been issued or proposed by the F ASB or other standards-setting bodies are not 
expected to have a material impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations, or cash flows. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 2. Restrictions on Cash 

To comply with banking regulations, the Company is required to maintain certain average cash reserve balances. The 
daily average cash rese1ve requirement was approximately $2,551,000 and $2,413,000 for the periods including 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Note 3. Securities 

Debt and equity securities have been classified in the balance sheets according to management's intent. The amortized 
costs of securities available for sale and their approximate fair values at December 31, 2017 and 2016 follow: 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
Cost G11ins Losses Value 

2017 
Government-sponsored enterprises $ 4,999,258 $ - $ 75,749 $ 4,923,509 
Mortgage-backed securities 8 903 196 2 9 097 

$ S 008,161 $ 126 $ 25,751 ~ ~.232,6.M 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
Cost Gains Losses Value 

2016 
Government-sponsored enterprises $ $ - $ 80,871 $ 4,918,030 
Mortgage-backed securities 320 14,812 
Corporate bonds 300.000 

$ 320 L_____5_.2ll,IM.2 

Restricted equity securities were $303,880 and $402,189 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Restricted 
equity securities primarily consist of investments in stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta ("FHLB") and 
Community Bankers Bank ("CBB"). These investments are carried at cost. The FHLB requires financial institutions 
to make equity investments in the FHLB in order to borrow money. The Company is required to own the stock so 
long as it borrows from the FHLB. CBB stock is classified as restricted due to the transfer restrictions placed on the 
ownership of the stock by the issuer. 

Securities of government-sponsored enterprises amounting to $3,599,650 and $3,548,660 were pledged as collateral 
on public deposits at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Mortgage-backed securities amounting to $9,097 
and $14,812 were pledged to the FHLB at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 3. Securities, continued 

Maturities of mortgage-backed bonds are stated based on contractual maturities. Actual maturities of these bonds may 
vary as the underlying mortgages are prepaid. The investment in equities and mutual funds by nature have no maturity 
date and are classified as due in one year or less. 

The scheduled maturities of securities (all available for sale) at December 31, 2017, were as follows: 

Due in one year or less 
Due after one year through five years 
Due after five years through ten years 
Due after ten years 

$ 

$ 

Amortized 
Cost 

Fair 
Value 

703 $ 704 
5,001,643 4,925,899 

601 619 
5 214 5 384 

5 008 161 ~$==a!a4,o,a9~32!!>,6!,!,10~6 

The Company had realized losses of $33,127 from the sales of equity and mutual fund investment securities for the 
year ended December 31, 2016. Total proceeds from the sales amounted to $530; 710. There were no such sales in the 
year ended December 31, 2017. 

The following tables show investments' gross unrealized losses and fair value, aggregated by investment category and 
length of time that the individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31 , 2017 
and 2016. These unrealized losses on investment securities are a result of volatility in interest rates and market 
fluctuations and relate to government-sponsored enterprises at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total 
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized 

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses 
2017 

Government-sponsored enterprises $ - $ - $ 4,923,510 $ 75,749 $ 4,923,510 $ 75,749 
Mortgage-backed securities 54J 2 543 2 

$ 543 $ 2 $ 4 223 51Q $ 7.5 7.42 $ 4 224 053 $ 7.5 7.51 

2016 
Government-sponsored enterprises 80 87.1 .,.$====- ""$===- LI .. 2.JJLl!lQ ,,,,$=,,,.8,,.0.,,87.,,,.,J 

Management considers the nature of the investment, the underlying causes of the decline in the market value and the 
severity and duration of the decline in market value in determining if impairment is other than temporary. 
Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the 
financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its 
investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. Based upon 
this evaluation, there are seven securities in the portfolio with unrealized losses for a period greater than 12 months. 
We have analyzed each individual security for Other Than Temporary Impairment ("OTTI") purposes by reviewing 
delinquencies, loan-to-value ratios, and credit quality and concluded that all unrealized losses presented in the tables 
above are not related to an issuer's financial condition but are due to changes in the level of interest rates and market 
volatility. No declines are deemed to be other than temporary in nature. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 4. Loans Receivable 

The major components of Joans in the balance sheets at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are below. 

2017 2016 

Commercial and industrial $ 59,141,603 $ 56,465,633 
Real estate: 

Construction and land development 5,834,743 11,864,585 
Residential, 1-4 families 46,008,882 43,694,728 
Residential, 5 or more families 3,014,587 1,597,922 
Farmland 8,886,400 7,750,022 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 97,260,198 85,844,645 

Agricultural 858,704 1,451,054 
Consumer, 2.939.769 3.487,433 

223,944,886 212,156,022 
Net, deferred loan origination costs (fees) 299,112 221,921 

224,243,998 212,377,943 
Allowance for loan losses (3,848,006) (3,687,500) 

$ 220125 222 $ 208,62Q,gg3 

Residential, 1-4 family loans pledged as collateral against FfilB advances approximated $13,374,000 and $11,977,000 
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 5. Allowance for Loan Losses 

The allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan components at December 31 , 2017 and 2016 was as follows: 

Construction Commercial 
& 1-4 Family Nonfarm, and 

Dc.vclopmC"nt R ~idcnJin l , nnrc.~ldcnt ial lndu.st rln l Consum e r Other Total 

2017 

Allowance for credit losses: 
Beginning balance $ 180,597 $ 823,115 $ 1,183,261 $ 1,267,982 $ 78,4 18 $ 154,127 $ 3,687,500 
Charge-offs ( 11.433) (90,730) (28,319) (130,482) 
Recoveries 183,956 1,165 135,989 9,744 5,000 335,854 
Provision (93 525) (197 473) 210 803 12 101 5 071 18 157 (44,8§/j) 

Ending balance s s:zon ~ s I 325 222 $ I 325 342 s :!.,ill s. .ZU8'l § 38!1.8..ll.M 

Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impainnenl - s 68283 .1i 23 251 s ()2 234 

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impainnent $ 87 072 $ 728 165 s I 3269~ $ I 301 321 $ 17Z284 $ 3 755 772 

Loans Receivable: 
Ending balance s S 83:1 743 s •Hi 008.88?, Lm,2n0..ill s .59.ill.603. s 2 232 762 s___u.15.2_62.1 S--223.2~8.&6. 

Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impainnent $ 225323 ~ I 082 4'l~ - $ 3 )25263 

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impainnent LI.S.OSl.ill s 96 170 703 $ S.Qll,ill s 2 239 '.262 S.......U.15.2.621 $ 21 0 819 623 

2016 

Allowo11ce for credit losses: 
Beginning balance $ 150,400 $ 790,200 $ 1,020,400 $ 1.361,814 $ 177,894 $ 126,200 $ 3,626,908 

Charge-offs (425,692) (132,281) (394,713) (170,670) (11 ,086) (1,134,442) 
Recoveries 8,425 159,331 600,490 25,385 793 ,63 1 
Provision 30 197 450 182 135 811 (229 609) 4.'i ~09 39 013 401 403 

Ending balance s 180 52'.Z $ 823 115 s I 183 261 s I 267 9..82 $ 784 18 $ 154!21 L_3.6.81.50ll. 

Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impainnent s l QB!i s 3 Q86 

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impainnent s JSQ 522 s 823 115 s I IBJ261 ? s 28 ~IS L-..l.611H I~ 

Loam· Receivable: 
Ending balance $ 13 621228 s Sj 8~•1 G!IS $ 56 465 633 $ 3 487 433 s HI 728 228 $ 212156Q22 

Ending balance: individually 
evaluated for impainnent - s 128! I ~16 '1~2 __l_..ll8.3J L__ - $ 3 223 271 

Ending balance: collectively 
evaluated for impainnenl s 11su!lm s ~2 106237 s 81528203 s ss 147 22S s :i gsz 4lJ s 10 zgs g2s S '!lS:m 7SI 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 5. Allowance for Loan Losses, continued 

The following table presents Joans individually evaluated for impairment by class of loan as of December 31, 2017 and 
2016: 

Unpaid Average Interest 
Recorded Principal Related Recorded Income 

Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recoi:nized 

2017 

With no related allowance recorded: 
Construction and development $ - $ - $ $ - $ 
1-4 family residential 925,323 937,871 974,334 74,446 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 979,835 1,003,530 1,066,867 53,401 
Commercial and industrial 923,455 923,456 975,517 70,546 
Consumer 
Other loans 

b 828,6 13 2 864 857 3 016.718 198 393 

With an allowance recorded: 
Construction and development 
1-4 family residential 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 109,660 I 09,660 23,951 112,338 4,905 
Commercial and industrial 186,990 254,965 68,283 187,617 8,297 
Consumer 
Other Joans 

296 650 364 625 92 234 299 955 13 202 

Combined: 
Construction and development 
1-4 family residential 925,323 937,871 974,334 74,446 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 1,089,494 1,113, 190 23,951 1, 179,205 58,306 
Commercial and industrial 1, 11 0,446 1,178,421 68,283 1,163,134 78,843 
Consumer 
Other loans ., 2-ul $ J 2"2 !186 ' 2..li ~ J 316 6ZJ $. 211 j25 

2016 

With no related allowance recorded: 
Construction and development $ - $ - $ - $ $ 
1-4 family residential 1,288,491 1,308,748 1,314,436 47,501 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 1,316,442 1,373,846 1,380,859 65,238 
Commercial and industrial 1,315,152 1,315,152 1,329,270 87,913 
Consumer 
Other loans 

3.920 085 3 997 746 4 024 565 200,652 

With an allowance recorded: 
Construction and development 
1-4 family residential 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 
Commercial and industrial 3,186 3,186 3,086 24,173 906 
Consumer 
Other Joans 

3 186 3 186 3 086 24 173 906 

Combined: 
Construction and development 
1-4 family residential 1,288,491 1,308,748 1,314,436 47,501 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 1,316,442 1,373,846 3,086 1,380,859 65,238 
Commercial and industrial 1,318,338 1,318,338 1,353,443 88,819 
Consumer 
Other Joans 

$ Jm 2z1 $ 4 000 932 i 3 086 $ H248 7JH $ 2QI 55!! 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 5. Allowance for Loan Losses, continued 

Nonperfonning loans and impaired Joans are defined differently. As such, some loans may be included in both categories, 
whereas other loans may only be included in one category. The following presents by class, an aging analysis of the 
recorded investment in loans. 

The following table presents an age analysis of past due loans as of December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

30-59 Days 
Past Due 

Construction and development$ 79,351 
1-4 family residential 441 ,567 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 227,789 
Commercial and industrial 182,314 
Consumer 22,657 
Other loans 393 226 

Total S l.3!!G,204 
Percentage of total loans .0..6.0% 

Non-accruals included above 
Construction and development$ -
1-4 family residential 
N onfarm, nonresidential 29,797 
Commercial and industrial 
Consumer 
Other loans 

s 22 Z2Z 

2016 

Construction and development$ -
1-4 family residential 378,842 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 222, 199 
Commercial and industrial 35,515 
Consumer 10,157 
Other loans 

Total S..._____M.6.1J.J, 
Percentage of total loans OJQ% 

Non-accruals included above 
Construction and development$ -
1-4 family residential 54, 136 
Nonfann, nonresidential 89,013 
Commercial and industrial 
Consumer 
Other loans 

I 143, 142 

60-89 Days 90 Days Plus 
Past Due Past Due 

$ - $ -
207,583 96,844 

399,598 

s @1 l Sl .lli 
Q 27% 00:!l'l'.'o 

$ - $ -
10,458 

$ 

$ $ 
2,096 332,258 

100,500 
29,221 58,614 

$ 31 3)7 421 :m 
____j)..Qlli 023% 

$ - $ -
2,096 332,252 

100,500 
58,614 

$ 2 096 s !121.J{i~ 

22 

$ 

$ 

$. 

$ 

Total 
Past Due 

79,351 
745,994 
227,789 
581,912 

22,657 
393 226 

.o.m.22.2 
Q22% 

-
10,458 
29,797 

!10 255 

-
713,196 
322,699 
123,350 
10,157 

$_.__1.1@..1.Q.';! 
055% 

$ -
388,484 
189,513 

58,614 

s !i36 ~1 I 

Current 

$ 5,755,392 
45,262,888 
97,032,409 
58,559,691 

2,917,112 
12,J66 465 

$-221.823.9..il 
9..2.0.8% 

$ -
17,468 

144,053 
25,883 

$ I I ,864,585 
42,981 ,532 
85,521 ,946 
56,342,283 
3,477,276 

10,798,998 
i.21.0.28§,620_ 
____22 45_~ 

$ -
291,400 
397,946 

6,803 

i 626 142 

Total 

$ 5,834,743 
46,008,882 
97,260,198 
59,141 ,603 

2,939,769 
12 7;i9,691 

Slli.9M 
100..illl..'l:o 

$ 
27,926 

173,850 
25,883 

221.652 

$ 11 ,864,585 
43,694,728 
85,844,645 
56,465,633 
3,487,433 

10 798,998 
:6 212 151.i 012 

100.00•&1 

$ 
679,884 
587,459 

65,417 

:s I J)Z 2,,0 

Recorded 
Investment 
> 90 Days 

$ 

s 

$ 

$ 

and 
/\ccrulng 

96, 844 

!Iii 8!1:!I 

6 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 5. Allowance for Loan Losses, continued 

Credit Quality Indicators: 

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to 
service their debt such as : current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public 
information, and current economic trends, among other factors. The Company analyzes loans individually by 
classifying the loans as to credit risk. Loans classified as substandard or special mention are reviewed quarterly by the 
Company for further deterioration or improvement to determine if appropriately classified and impairment, if any. All 
other loans greater than $500,000, commercial lines greater than $250,000 and personal lines of credit greater than 
$100,000, and unsecured loans greater than $100,000 are specifically reviewed at least annually to determine the 
appropriate loan grading. In addition, during the renewal process of any loan, as well as when a loan becomes past 
due, the Company evaluates the loan grade. 

Loans excluded from the scope of the annual review process above are generally classified as pass credits until: (a) 
they become past due; (b) management becomes aware of deterioration in the credit worthiness of the borrower; or 
(c) the customer contacts the Company for a modification. In these circumstances, the loan is specifically evaluated 
for potential classification as to special mention, substandard or even charged off. The Company uses the following 
definitions for risk ratings: 

Special Mention. Loans classified as special mention have a potential weakness that deserves management's 
close attention. If left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment 
prospects for the loan or of the institution's credit position at some future date. 

Substandard. Loans classified as substandard are inadequately protected by the current net worth and payment 
capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified have a well-defined weakness or 
weaknesses that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the 
institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. 

Doubtful. Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with 
the added characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently 
existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 5. Allowance for Loan Losses, continued 

Loans by credit quality indicator are provided in the following table. 

Special 
Total Pass Credits Mention Substandard Douhtful 

Occcmber J I, 2017 

Construction and development $ 5,834,743 $ 5,834,743 $ $ - $ 
1-4 family residential 46,008,882 45,708,601 300,281 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 97,260,198 96,438,645 716,946 104,607 
Commercial and industrial 59,141,603 58,645,073 496,530 
Consumer 2,939,769 2,934,800 4,969 
Other loans 12759691 12759691 

$-22l..2M,Wi L.22~,12 1 m $ I ill,126 $ 1Q46QZ 

JOO 0% 223% 0 7~ 00% -o/c 

Guaranlectl porlion or loan.s 

Construction and development $ 74,559 $ 74,559 $ - $ - $ 
1-4 family residential 297,316 297,316 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 36,040,738 36,025,839 14,899 
Commercial and industrial 12,061,429 12,010,930 50,499 
Consumer 
Other loans I 117 671 1.117 671 

$ ~2 .52'1113 s ~2 :i2fi.:ll~ $ fi~ 

Special 
Total Pass Credits Mention Substandard Doubtful 

December 3 1. 20 16 

Construction and development $ 11,864,585 $ 11,864,585 $ - $ - $ 
1-4 family residential 43,694,728 42,660,573 801,120 233,035 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 85,844,645 84,570,219 921,925 352,501 
Commercial and industrial 56,465,633 55,148,880 1,316,753 
Consumer 3,487,433 3,477,100 10,333 
Other loans 10 798.998 10.798 998 

$ 212 1.56 Q22 $ 2QB 52Q 3.55 $ 3~ $ .m 536 

]QQ Q% 283% 11% Q3% _o 

Guarnn tccll 1mrtio 11 of loans 

Construction and development $ 83,070 $ 83,070 $ - $ $ 
1-4 family residential 308,987 308,987 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 33,886,260 33,841,753 44,507 
Commercial and industrial 11,688,483 11,216,008 472,475 
Consumer 
Other loans 861 165 861 165 

~fi.822,26 $ !I~ 31Q 28J ~ 51~9..8.2. $ 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 5. Allowance for Loan Losses, continued 

Troubled Debt Restrncturings 

l-4 Family residential 
Nonfann, nonresidential 
Commercial and industrial 

Number 
of 

Contracts 

2 

For the year ended 
December 31, 2017 

Pre­
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

$ 

212,675 

Post­
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

$ 

212,675 

Number 
of 

Contracts 

3 
2 
2 

For the year ended 
December 31 , 2016 

Pre­
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

$ 228,539 
174,212 
67,950 

Post­
Modification 
Outstanding 

Recorded 
Investment 

$ 228,539 
174,2 12 
67,950 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Bank modified two loans that were considered to be troubled debt 
restructurings. The terms for these loans were extended. 

During the year ended December 31, 2016, the Bank modified seven loans that were considered to be troubled debt 
restructurings. The terms for these loans were extended. The payment was lowered on one Joan and one loan was 
renewed while interest was not paid current. 

During the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, no loans that had previously been restructured were in default. 

In the determination of the allowance for loan losses, management considers troubled debt restructurings and 
subsequent defaults in these restructurings by adjusting the loan grades of such loans, which influence the 
environmental factors associated with the allowance. Defaults resulting in charge-offs affect the historical loss 
experience ratios which are a component of the allowance calculation. Additionally, specific reserves may be 
established on restructured loans evaluated individually. 

Note 6. Loan Servicing 

The Company occasionally sells the guaranteed portion of certain government guaranteed loans in the secondary market. 
The Company continues to service these loans that totaled $6,816,759 and $7,1 I 0,490 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. The Company recognizes a servicing rights asset upon the sale of the guaranteed portion of government 
guaranteed loans for which the Company retains the underlying servicing obligation. Servicing rights assets are initially 
measured at fair value and amortized to expense over the estimated life of the servicing obligation. The fair value of 
servicing rights is determined at the date of sale of the underlying loan using the present value of estimated future net 
servicing income on assumptions that market participants use in their valuation estimates. The Company presents its 
servicing rights assets gross at the lower of cost or fair value in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Servicing rights are 
included in other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 6. Loan Servicing, continued 

The following table presents a roll forward of loan servicing rights for the years 2017 and 2016 and shows that the 
loan servicing rights are classified as Level 3 as discussed below. 

Balance, January 1 
Capitalized 
Amortization included in other income 
Balance, December 31 

Note 7. Property and Equipment 

$ 

$ 

Level 3 
2017 
Fair 

Value 

268,472 $ 

(10,559) 
252 213 $ 

2016 
Fair 

Value 

340,172 

(71,700) 
268 !lZ2 

Components of property and equipment and total accumulated depreciation at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as 
follows: 

Land and improvements 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Less accumulated depreciation 

2017 2016 

$ 2,519,728 $ 1,998,817 
5,321,689 4,664,761 
3,534,824 3,284,59 1 

I 1,376,241 9,948,169 
(4,576.685) (4,496,483) 

$ 6 299 556 .... $ ==5"='4"'=5 =tal,6...,8""'6 

Depreciation expense amounted to $318,728, and $311,395 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. 

The Company's West Pine Street branch is leased under a five-year operating lease at a monthly rental of $2,492. The 
lease expires March 31, 2020. The Company has the option to renew the lease for one additional five-year term. The 
five-year te1m will carry a 12.5% increase in the monthly rental over the previous five-year te1m. Rental expense was 
$42,970 and $39,200 for 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

Pursuant to the terms ofnon-cancelable lease agreements in effect at December 31, 2017, and leases expected to renew, 
pertaining to banking premises and equipment, future minimum rent commitments under various operating leases are as 
follows : 

2018 
2019 
2020 

26 

$ 

$ 

29,900 
29,900 
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67 275 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 8. Deposits 

Time deposits that meet or exceed the FDIC Insurance limit of $250,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were 
$11,634,715 and $5,261,157, respectively. The aggregate amount of time deposits in denominations of $100,000 to 
$250,000 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, was $23,504,261 and $24,845,786, respectively. At December 31, 2017, the 
scheduled maturities of total time deposits are as follows: 

Note 9. Short-Term Debt 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2020 

$ 46,146,975 
12,266,656 
2,874,402 
5,338,742 
2,936,547 

$ 69 563 322 

Short-term debt consists ofFederal Home Loan Bank advances that have original maturities of 12 months or less, short­
term secured borrowings associated with the sale of government guaranteed loans and federal funds purchased and 
securities sold under agreements to repurchase, which generally mature within one to four days from the transaction date. 
Additional information at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the periods then ended is summarized below: 

Outstanding balance at December 31 
Year-end weighted average rate 
Daily average outstanding during the year 
Average rate for the year 
Maximum outstanding at any month-end during the year 

Lines of Credit 

$ 

$ 

$ 

20.17 

-
-~ 

862 
I 33% 

2]1,Q55 

2016 

$ 
_0,1, 

$ GQQ 
08J% 

$ 2!9,50A_ 

The Company has established various credit facilities to provide additional liquidity if and as needed. These include 
unsecured lines of credit with correspondent banks totaling $35,500,000 and a secured line of credit with the Federal 
Honie Loan Bank of Atlanta of approximately $8,269,000. At December 31, 2017, there were no amounts outstanding 
on the unsecured lines with correspondent banks. Advances due to the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta on the 
secured line of credit at December 31, 2016 amounted to $1,750,000. No advances were outstanding at December 31, 
2017. 

Note 10. Fair Value 

The Company utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to 
determine fair value disclosures. Securities available for sale, trading securities and derivatives, if present, are recorded 
at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, from time to time, the Company may be required to record at fair value 
other assets on a nonrecurring basis, such as loans held for sale, loans held for investment, servicing assets and 
foreclosed properties. These nonrecutTing fair value adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost or 
market accounting or write-downs of individual assets. 
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Note 10. Fair Value, continued 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

Under the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic ofFASB ASC, the Company groups assets and liabilities 
at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the 
assumptions used to detennine fair value. These levels are: 

Level 1 Valuation is based upon quoted prices for identical instruments traded in active markets. 

Level 2 Valuation is based upon quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets, quoted prices for 
identical or similar instruments in markets that are not active, and model-based valuation 
techniques for which all significant assumptions are observable in the market. 

Level 3 Valuation is generated from model-based techniques that use at least one significant assumption 
not observable in the market. These unobservable assumptions reflect estimates of assumptions 
that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. Valuation techniques include 
use of option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar techniques. 

Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value. 

Investment Securities Available for Sale 

Investment securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based 
upon quoted prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing 
models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the 
security's credit rating, prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions. Level 1 securities 
include those traded on an active exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange, U.S. Treasury securities that are 
traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets and money market funds . Level 2 securities include 
mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities, municipal bonds and corporate debt securities. 
Securities classified as Level 3 include asset-backed securities in less liquid markets. 

Loans 

The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis. However, from time to time, a loan is considered 
impaired and an allowance for loan losses is established. Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and 
principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan agreement are considered impaired. 
Once a loan is identified as individually impaired, management measures the impaitment in accordance with the 
Receivables Topic of the F ASB ASC. The fair value of impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods, 
including collateral value, market value of similar debt, enterprise value, liquidation value and discounted cash flows. 
Those impaired loans not requiring an allowance represent loans for which the fair value of the expected repayments 
or collateral exceed the recorded investments in such loans. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, substantially all of the 
total impaired loans were evaluated based on the fair value of the collateral and discounted cash flows. In accordance 
with the Fair Value and Measurement Topic of the FASB ASC, impaired loans, where an allowance is established 
based on the fair value of collateral; require classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value of the 
collateral is based on an observable market price the Company records the impaired loan as nonrecurring Level 2. 
When an appraised value is available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired 
below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company records the impaired loan as 
nonrecurring Level 3. 

28 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 10. Fair Value, continued 

Servicing Assets 

A valuation of loan servicing rights is performed on an individual basis due to the small number of loans serviced. Loans 
are evaluated on a discounted earnings basis to determine the present value of future earnings. The present value of the 
future earnings is the estimated market value for the loan, calculated using consensus assumptions that a third party 
purchaser would utilize in evaluating a potential acquisition of the servicing. As such, the Company classifies loan 
servicing rights as Level 3. 

Foreclosed Assets 

Foreclosed assets are recorded at the lower of investment in the loan or fair value less selling cost upon transfer of the 
loans to foreclosed assets. Subsequently, foreclosed assets are carried at the lower of carrying value or fair value less 
selling cost. Fair value is based upon independent market prices, appraised values of the collateral or management's 
estimation of the value of the collateral. 

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

The table below presents the recorded amount of assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis. No liabilities were 
presented at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

(in thousands) 
December 31, 2017 Total Level 1 
Government-sponsored enterprises $ 4,924 $ 
Mortgage-backed securities 9 
Total assets at fair value $ 4933 

(in thousands) 
December 31, 2016 Total Level 1 
Government-sponsored enterprises $ 4,918 $ 
Mortgage-backed securities 15 
Corporate bonds 300 
Total assets at fair value $ 5 233 

The changes in Level 3 assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis were: 

(in thousands) 
Corporate Bonds-Available for Sale 
Balance, January 1 

Total realized gain (losses) included in income 
Total unrealized gain (losses) included in other comprehensive income 
Net purchases, sales, calls and maturities 
Net transfers in/out of Level 3 

Balance, December 31 

Level 2 Level 3 
. $ 4,924 $ 

9 
. $ 4 924 $ 9 

Level 2 Level 3 
- $ 4,918 $ 

15 
300 

- $ 4 933 $ 300 

2017 2016 

$ 300 $ 300 

(300) 

======· ~$====="3"'0~0 

Of the Level 3 assets that were held by the Company at December 31, 2016, the unrealized gain for the year was $300. 
That gain was recognized in other comprehensive income in the consolidated balance sheet. Both observable and 
unobservable inputs may be used to determine the fair value of positions classified as Level 3 assets. As a result, the 
unrealized gains and losses for these assets presented in the tables above may include changes in fair value that were 
attributable to both observable and unobservable inputs. 
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Note 10. Fair Value, continued 

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis 

The Company may be required, from time to time, to measure certain assets or liabilities at fair value on a nonrecurring 
basis in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. These include assets and liabilities that are 
required to be measured at the lower of cost or market that were recognized at fair value below cost at the end of the 
period. Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a nonrecurring basis are included in the table below. No liabilities 
were presented at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

(in thousands) 
December 31, 2017 Total Level 1 Level2 Lc,•cl 3 

Impaired loans $ 3,033 $ $ - $ 3,033 
Foreclosed assets 167 167 
Servicing assets 257 257 
Total assets at fair value $ 3451 - $ H51 

(in thousands) 
December 31, 2016 Total Level 1 Level2 Leve13 

Impaired loans $ 3,920 $ - $ - $ 3,920 
Foreclosed assets 177 177 
Servicing assets 268 268 
Total assets at fair value $ 4 365 - $ 4 365 

For level 3 assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis as of December 31, 
2017 and 2016, the significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements were as follows: 

Fair Value at 
Deeember31, 2017 Valuation Tcchnigue 

Servicing assets $ 257 Management estimate 

Foreclosed assets $ 167 Management estimate 

Impaired loans $ 3,033 Management estimate 

Fair Value at 
December 31, 2016 Valuation Techniguc 

Corporate bonds $ 300 Third party 
estimate 

Servicing assets $ 268 Management estimate 

Foreclosed assets $ 177 Management estimate 

Impaired loans $ 3,920 Management estimate 

30 

Significant 
nubscn•ahlc ln(!uls 

Present value of future 
payments/useful life 

Appraisals and/or 
sales of comparable 

prope1ties 
Appraised 

value/discounted cash 
flows/market value 

Significant 
Unobservable lnl!uts 

Sales of comparable 
instruments 

Present value of future 
payments/useful life 

Appraisals and/or 
sales of comparable 

properties 
Appraised 

value/discounted cash 
flows/market value 

Significant 
Unobservable 

lnl!ul Value 

n/a 

0-10% 

0-10% 

Significant 
Unobservable 

lnl!ul Value 

n/a 

n/a 

0-10% 

0-10% 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 10. Fair Value, continued 

Accounting standards for financial instruments require disclosure of fair value information about financial 
instruments, whether or not recognized in the balance sheet. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, 
fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation techniques. Those techniques are significantly 
affected by the assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. In that regard, the 
derived fair value estimates cannot be substantiated by comparison to independent markets and, in many cases, could 
not be realized in immediate settlement of the instruments. These accounting standards exclude certain financial 
instruments and all non-financial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate fair value 
amounts presented do not represent the underlying value of the Company. 

The methodologies for estimating fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a 
recurring or non-recurring basis are discussed above. The estimated fair value approximates carrying value for cash 
and cash equivalents, accrued interest and the cash surrender value of life insurance policies. The methodologies for 
other financial assets and liabilities are discussed below: 

Financial Instruments 

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating its fair value disclosures for financial 
instruments: 

Cash and due .from banks: The carrying amounts reported in the balance sheet for cash and due from banks approximate 
their fair values. 

Interest-bearing deposits with banks: Fair values for interest-bearing demand deposits and time deposits are estimated 
using a discounted cash flow analysis that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of 
aggregated contractual maturities on such time deposits. 

Federaljimds sold: Due to the short-term nature of these assets, the carrying value approximates fair value. 

Securities: Fair values for securities, excluding restricted equity securities, are based on quoted market prices, where 
available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing models or other 
model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security' s credit 
rating, prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions. The carrying values of restricted 
equity securities approximate fair values. 

Loans receivable: For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and with no significant change in credit risk, fair values 
are based on carrying amounts. The fair values for other loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analysis, based 
on interest rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Loan fair 
value estimates include judgments regarding future expected loss experience and risk characteristics. The fair value of 
impaired loans is estimated using one of several methods, including collateral value, market value of similar debt, 
enterprise value, liquidation value and discounted cash flows. The carrying amount of accrued interest receivable 
approximates its fair value. 

Bank owned life insurance: The canying amount reported in the balance sheet approximates the fair value as it represents 
the cash surrender value of the life insurance. 

Deposit liabilities: The fair values disclosed for demand and savings deposits are, by definition, equal to the amount 
payable on demand at the reporting date. The fair values for certificates of deposit are estimated using a discounted cash 
flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on certificates to a schedule of aggregated contractual 
maturities on such time deposits. The carrying amount of accrued interest payable approximates fair value. 

Federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase and short-term debt: The carrying amounts of 
federal funds purchased, securities sold under agreements to repurchase and short-term debt approximate their fair values. 

Long-term debt: The fair value of long-term debt is estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies 
interest rates currently available on similar instruments. 

Other liabilities: For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value considers the difference between current levels of interest 
rates and the committed rates. The carrying amounts of other liabilities approximate fair value. 
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Note 10. Fair Value, continued 

Fair Values 

The estimated fair values of the Company's financial instruments are as follows (dollars in thousands): 

Fair Value Measurements 

(dollars in thousands) 

December 31, 2017 
Financial Instruments - Assets 

Loans 

Financial Instruments - Liabilities 
Deposits 

December 31, 2016 
Financial Instruments - Assets 

Loans 

Financial Instruments - Liabilities 
Deposits 
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 

$ 

$ 

Note 11. Earnings Per Common Share 

Carrying 
Amounl 

220,396 

253,655 

208,690 

230,262 
1,750 

Fair Value 

$ 220,830 

229,028 

$ 213,199 

219,603 
1,785 

Quoted 
Prices in 

Active Markets 
for Identical 
Significant 
Assets or 

$ 

$ 

Liabilities 
(Level I) 

-

-

Significant Other 
Observable 

Inputs 
(Level 2) 

$ -

84,170 

$ -

84,825 

$ 

Unobservable 
Inputs 

(Level 3\ 

220,830 

144,858 

$ 213,199 

134,778 
1,785 

The following table details the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share for the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 20 I 6: 

2017 2016 

Net income $ 3,026,907 $ 3,596,628 
Convertible preferred stock dividends (Series A and D) (183,423) (183,423) 
Net income available to common shareholders $ 2 813,484 $ 2 413 205 
Weighted average common shares outstanding 3,533,139 3,542,196 

Effect of dilutive securities: 
Convertible preferred stock (Series A and D) 633 935 633 935 

Weighted average common shares outstanding, diluted 4,167,074 4 176.13 1 

Basic earnings per common share $ Q.Sg 
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.73 

The Company had 18,887 shares of common stock available for exercise in its qualified incentive stock option plan at 
the end of 2016. These shares were not "in the money" therefore had no effect on fully diluted earnings per share at 
December 31, 2016. The shares were either exercised or expired in 2017. 
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Note 12. Employee Benefit Plans 

The Company has a defined contribution plan (the Plan) qualifying under IRS Code Section 40 I (k). Eligible participants 
in the Plan can contribute up to the maximum percentage allowable not to exceed the dollar limit under IRC Section 
40 I (k). The Company matches I 00% of the first six percent of an employee's contribution. For the years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company contributed $172,418 and $165,865 to the Plan, respectively. 

The Company has a Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan (SERP) to provide future compensation to certain members 
of management upon retirement. Under plan provisions, payments projected to range from $50,827 to $89,914, per year, 
are payable for the life of the executive, generally beginning at age 65. The liability accrued for the compensation under 
the plan was $1,234,028 and $1,059,136 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Employee benefits expense, an 
actuarially determined amount, was $174,892 and $162,736 for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. No benefits were paid out in 2017 and 2016. The assumed discount rate for the plan was 5.00% at December 
31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. 

The Company also has a deferred compensation plan under which directors may elect to defer their directors' fees . 
Participating directors receive an additional 30% matching contribution and will be paid an annual benefit for a 
specified number of years after retirement, generally beginning at age 65. The maximum payout period is ten years. 
The liability accrued for deferred directors' fees was $1,364,586 and $1,201,554 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 
respectively. Deferred directors' fees expensed under the plan for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 were 
$177,684 and $142,518, respectively. Benefits of$ l 4,652 and $14,499 were paid out during the years ended December 
31, 201 7 and 2016, respectively. 

The Company has purchased and is the primary beneficiary of life insurance policies indirectly related to the 
Supplemental Retirement Benefit Plan and the directors' deferred compensation liability. The cash value of the life 
insurance policies totaled $6,620,119 and $6,436,040 at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. In June of 2016, 
life insurance proceeds in excess of the cash surrender value "CSV" of life insurance of $315,754 were accrued upon 
the death ofa former officer of the Company. Total proceeds, including the CSV, amounted to $695,811. 

Note 13. Stock-Based Compensation 

The Company's qualified incentive stock option plan which expired on June 1, 2007 reserved shares for purchase by 
eligible employees. Options granted under this plan vest at the rate of 20% per year, expire not more than ten years 
from the date of grant, and are exercisable at not less than the fair market value of the stock at the date of the grant. 

The Company's non-qualified stock option plan, which expired on June 1, 2007, reserved shares for purchase by non­
employee directors. Options granted under this plan were exercisable after six months from the date of the grant at not 
less than the fair market value of the stock at the date of the grant. The life of such options shall not extend more than 
ten years from the date of the grant. 

The fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. 
The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury rate for the expected life at the time of grant. Volatility is 
based on the volatilities of our trading history. The expected life is based on the average life of the options of ten years 
and the weighted average graded vesting period of five years, and forfeitures are considered immaterial based on the 
historical data of the Company. 
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Note 13. Stock Based Compensation, continued 

A surnmaiy of option activity under the stock option plans during the years ended Decern her 3 I, 20 I 7 and 2016 is 
presented below: 

Balance at December 31, 2015 

Exercised 
Authorized 
Forfeited 
Granted 
Expired 
Balance at December 31, 2016 

Exercised 
Authorized 
Forfeited 
Granted 
Expired 
Balance at December 31, 2017 

Options 
Outstanding 

22,187 $ 

22,187 

(1,588) 

Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 

12.06 

12.06 

12.06 

__ _.,(=20~,5~9~9) ---=12=.0~6 

==== = · !!!a$===== 

In October 2017, the Company adopted a share based compensation plan for restricted stock rewards. The plan expires 
in October 2027. The maximum number of shares authorized for issuance under the Plan is 40,000. The restricted 
stock is valued at the fair market value on the date of the grant, with the expense recognized over the five year vesting 
period. No restricted shares were granted in 2017. 

As of December 3 I, 2017, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based 
compensation arrangements granted under the Company's stock option plans. There were no stock options outstanding 
at December 31, 2017. 

Note 14. Income Taxes 

The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (TCJA) was signed into law by the President on Friday December 22, 2017. The TCJA 
includes the reduction in the corporate tax rate from a top rate of 35% to a flat rate of 21 %, changes in business 
deductions, and many international provisions. 

Current and DefeJ'red Income Tax Components 

The components of income tax expense are as follows : 

Current 
Deferred 

2017 2016 
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Note 14. Income Taxes, continued 

Rate Reconciliation 

A reconciliation of expected income tax expense computed at the statutory federal income tax rate of 34% to income tax 
expense included in the statements of income is as follows: 

Expected tax expense 
State income tax, net of federal tax benefit 
Tax exempt income 
Nondeductible and other items 
Remeasurement for tax rate changes 

$ 

$ 

2017 

1,896,199 $ 
114,071 
(79,997) 

(5,775) 
625.651 

2016 

1,855,869 
129,724 

(196,792) 
73,008 

25501 49 ~$~=1_.,,8.,.6.._.1,,..80._._9 

The Company's provision for income taxes differs from applying the statutory U.S. federal income tax rate to income 
before income taxes. The primary differences result from the impact of state taxes, permanent adjustments relating to 
tax exempt income, changes associated with nondeductible items and changes effected from the enactment of the Tax 
Cuts and Jobs Act on December 22, 2017, including the impact of a remeasurement of the deferred taxes at the rate in 
which the deferred taxes are expected to reverse. 

Deferred Income Tax Analysis 

Net deferred tax assets are included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheets. The significant components of net 
deferred tax assets at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are summarized as follows: 

2017 2016 

Def erred tax assets 
Allowance for loan losses $ 826,889 $ 988,547 
Deferred compensation liability 597,162 813,397 
Net unrealized loss on securities available for sale 17,362 28,982 
Death Benefit Reserve Liability 1,878 1,428 
Interest income on non-accrual loans 85,848 130,650 
Lower of cost or market adjustment on 

loans transferred from available for sale to portfolio 4.753 8.873 
1,533,892 1 971 877 

Deferred tax liabilities 
Depreciation 272,724 357,466 
Net deferred loan cost 139,448 168,769 
Other 11 761 18 416 

423.933 544.651 
Net deferred tax asset $ 1 102 959 $ I 421,226 

The Company files tax returns in the United States Federal jurisdiction and the states of North Carolina and Virginia. 

The company measures deferred tax assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates that will apply in the years in which the 
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or paid. Accordingly, the company's deferred tax assets and liabilities 
were remeasured to reflect the reduction in the U.S. corporate income tax rate from 34 percent to 21 percent, resulting in 
a $625,651 increase in income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2017 and a con-esponding $625,651 decrease 
in net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2017. 
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Note 14. Income Taxes, continued 

The Company classifies interest and penalties related to income tax assessments, if any, in interest expense or non­
interest expense, respectively in the consolidated statements of income. Tax years 2014 through 2016 are subject to 
examination by the Internal Revenue Service, North Carolina Department of Revenue, and the Virginia Department 
of Taxation. The Company has analyzed the tax positions taken or expected to be taken in its tax returns and has 
concluded it has no liability related to uncertain tax positions. 

On July 23, 2013, North Carolina Governor Pat McCrory signed a major tax reform bill into law that lowered the 
North Carolina corporate income tax rate among other things. Specifically, the corporate income tax rate was reduced 
from 6.9% to 6% in 2014, and to 5% in 2015, and to 4% in 2016, and to 3% in 2017. The rate will be further reduced 
to 2.5% for the post-2018 tax year provided that specified revenue growth targets are reached. 

Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies 

Litigation 

In the normal course of business the Company is involved in various legal proceedings. After consultation with legal 
counsel, management believes that any liability resulting from such proceedings will not be material to the financial 
statements. 

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk 

The Company is pai1y to financial instrnments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the 
financing needs of its customers. These financial instrnments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters 
of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance 
sheets. 

The Company's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for 
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments. 
The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as for on-balance-sheet 
instruments. A summary of the Company's commitments at December 31, 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 

Commitments to extend credit, including unused lines of credit 
Standby letters of credit 

$ 

2017 2016 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition 
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may 
require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total 
commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company evaluates each customer's 
creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by the Company upon 
extension of credit, is based on management's credit evaluation of the party. Collateral held varies, but may include 
accounts receivable, inventory, property and equipment, residential real estate and income-producing commercial 
properties. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a customer 
to a third party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support public and private borrowing arrangements. The credit 
risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to customers. 
Collateral held varies as specified above and is required in instances which the Company deems necessary. The 
commitments carry both fixed and variable rates of interest. 
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Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies, continued 

Concentrations of Credit Risk 

Substantially all of the Company's loans, commitments to extend credit, and standby letters of credit have been granted 
to customers in the Company's market area and such customers are generally depositors of the Company. The 
concentrations of credit by type of loan are set forth in Note 4. The distribution of commitments to extend credit 
approximates the distribution of loans outstanding. The Company, as a matter of policy, does not extend credit to any 
single borrower or group of related borrowers in excess of approximately $6,700,000 unless guaranteed by SBA or USDA 
Rural Development Corporation. Although the Company has a reasonably diversified loan portfolio, the following 
industries are considered concentrations: real estate, motion picture and sound recording, truck transportation, fabricated 
metal product manufacturing, heavy and civil engineering construction and building construction. 

Other Commitments 

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain of its key officers covering duties, salary, benefits, 
provisions for tennination and Company obligations in the event of merger or acquisition. The Bank also has lease 
commitments summarized in Note 7 to these financial statements. 

Note 16. Regulatory Restrictions 

Dividends 

The Company's principal source of funds for the dividend payments is dividends received from the Bank. The Bank, as 
a North Carolina banking corporation, may pay cash dividends only out of undivided profits as detennined pursuant to 

North Carolina banking laws. However, regulatory authorities may limit payment of dividends by a bank when it is 
determined that such a limitation is in the public interest and is necessary to endure financial soundness of the bank. 

Intercompany Transactions 

The Bank's legal lending limit on loans to the Company is governed by Federal Reserve Act 23A, and differs from legal 
lending limits on loans to external customers. Generally, a bank may lend up to I 0% of its capital and surplus to its 
Parent, if the loan is secured. Under this definition, the legal lending limit for the Bank on loans to the Company was 
approximately $4,198,000 at December 31, 2017. No 23A transactions were deemed to exist between the Company and 
the Bank at December 31, 2017 or 2016. 

Capital Requirements 

The Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking 
agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory (and possibly additional 
discretionary) actions by regulators that, ifundertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company's consolidated 
financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the 
Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain 
off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank's capital amounts and 
classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other 
factors. 
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Note 16. Regulatory Restrictions, continued 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum 
amounts and ratios (set forth in the table below) of total, Common Equity Tier I and Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets, 
and of Tier I capital to average assets, as all those terms are defined in the regulations. Management believes, as of 
December 3 I, 2017, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject. 

As of December 3 I, 2017, the most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation categorized the 
Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well 
capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, and Tier I leverage ratios as set forth in 
the following table. TI1ere are no conditions or events after that notification that management believes to have changed 
the institution's category. 

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC approved revisions to their capital adequacy guidelines and prompt 
corrective action rules that implement the revised standards of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, 
commonly called "Basel III," and address relevant provision of the Dodd-Frank Act. Basel III refers to two 
consultative documents released by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision in December 2009, the rules text 
released in December 2010, and loss absorbency rules issued in January 2011, which include significant changes to 
bank capital, leverage, and liquidity requirements. 

The rules include new risk-based capital and leverage ratios, which became effective on January 1, 2015, and revise 
the definition of what constitutes "capital" for purposes of calculating those ratios. The new minimum capital level 
requirements applicable to the Bank are: (i) a new common equity Tier I capital ratio of 4.5 percent; (ii) a Tier 1 
capital ratio of 6.0 percent (increased from 4.0 percent); (iii) a total capital ratio of8.0 percent (unchanged from current 
rules); and (iv) a Tier I leverage ratio of 4.0 percent for all institutions. The rules eliminate the inclusion of certain 
instruments, such as trust preferred securities, from Tier I capital. Instruments issued prior to May 19,2010, will be 
grandfathered for companies with consolidated assets of $15 billion or less. The rules also establish a "capital 
conservation buffer" of 2.5 percent above the new regulatory minimum capital requirements, which must consist 
entirely of common equity Tier l capital and result in the following minimum ratios: (i) a common equity Tier 1 
capital ratio of 7 .0 percent, (ii) a Tier l capital ratio of 8.5 percent and (iii) a total capital ratio of I 0.5 percent. The 
new capital conservation buffer requirement will be phased in beginning in January 2016 at 0.625 percent of risk­
weighted assets and will increase by that amount each year until fully implemented in January 2019. An institution 
will be subject to limitations on paying dividends, engaging in share repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses if 
its capital level falls below the buffer amount. These limitations will establish a maximum percentage of eligible 
retained income that may be utilized for such actions. 
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Note 16. Regulatory Restrictions, continued 

The Company's and Bank's actual capital amounts and minimum required amounts (dollars in thousands) and ratios are 
also presented in the following table. 

Minimum Minimum to Be Well 
Required Capitalized Under 

For Capital Prompt Corrective 
Actual Adeguacv Purl!oses Action Provisions 

December 31, 2017 Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio 
Total Capital 

(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 
Consolidated $ 43,474 19.55% $ 17,787 8.000% $ n/a n/a 
Surrey Bank & Trust $ 43,402 19.59% $ 17,722 8.000% $ 22,152 10.00% 

Common Equity Tier I Capital 
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 
Consolidated $ 36,799 16.55% $ 10,005 4.500% $ n/a n/a 
Surrey Bank & Trust $ 40,606 18.33% $ 9,968 4.500% $ 14,398 6.50% 

Tier I Capital 
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 
Consolidated $ 40,667 18.29% $ 13,340 6.00% $ n/a n/a 
Surrey Bank & Trust $ 40,606 18.33% $ 13,291 6.00% $ 17,722 8.00% 

Tier I Capital 
(to Average Assets) 
Consolidated $ 40,667 14.01% $ 11 ,6 13 4.00% $ n/a n/a 
Surrey Bank & Trust $ 40,606 13.96% $ 11,636 4.00% $ 14,545 5.00% 

December 31, 2016 
Total Capital 

(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 
Consolidated $ 41,532 19.80% $ 16,777 8.000% $ n/a n/a 
Surrey Bank & Trust $ 41,318 19.70% $ 16,776 8.000% $ 20,97 1 10.00% 

Common Equity Tier I Capital 
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 
Consolidated $ 35,011 16.69% $ 9,437 4.500% $ n/a n/a 
Surrey Bank & Trust $ 38,666 18.44% $ 9,437 4.500% $ 13,63 1 6.50% 

Tier I Capital 
(to Risk-Weighted Assets) 
Consolidated $ 38,880 18.54% $ 12,583 6.00% $ n/a n/a 
Surrey Bank & Trust $ 38,666 18.44% $ 12,582 6.00% $ 16,776 8.00% 

Tier I Capital 
(to Average Assets) 
Consolidated $ 38,880 14.21% $ 10,947 4.00% $ n/a n/a 
Surrey Bank & Trust $ 38,666 14.13% $ 10,947 4.00% $ 13,684 5.00% 

Note 17. Recapitalization 

On May 27, 2016, following its Annual Meeting of Shareholders, the Company filed Articles of Amendment with the 
North Carolina Secretary of State, pursuant to which, each share of Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to 
such filing owned by a shareholder of record who owned fewer than 300 shares of Common Stock was, by virtue of 
the filing of the Articles of Amendment and without any action on the part of the holders thereof, reclassified as Class 
A Common Stock, on the basis of one share of Class A Common Stock for each share of Common Stock so 
reclassified; subject to such holder's right to elect to have his, her or its shares repurchased in exchange for the cash 
payment of $12.75 per share. The Company repurchased a total of I 7,518 shares amounting to $223,355. After the 
repurchase and recapitalization, there were a total of3,445,052 shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding held 
by 811 shareholders ofrecord, and a total of87,095 shares of Class A Common Stock issued and outstanding held by 
494 shareholders of record. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 18. Transactions with Related Parties 

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties. A related party is a director, an executive officer, a 
person known by the Company to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the Company's common stock ( a "5% 
stockholder"), or a person known by the Company to be an immediate family member of any of the foregoing . Such 
transactions were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms and conditions, including 
interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the same time for comparable transactions with other customers, and 
did not, in the opinion of management, involve more than normal credit risk or present other unfavorable features . 

Aggregate loan transactions with related parties were as follows: 

Balance, beginning 
New loans 
Repayments 
Balance, ending 

$ 

$ 

2017 

1,909,481 
2,600,652 

(2,249,878) 
2,2@,255 

Deposit transactions with related parties at December 31, 2017 and 2016 were insignificant. 

Note 19. Parent Company Activity 

2016 

$ 2,713,223 
600,527 

(1.404.269) 
$ 1,209,:181 

Surrey Bancorp owns all of the outstanding shares of the Bank. Condensed financial statements of Surrey Bancorp 
follow: 

Assets 

Cash and due from banks 
Other assets 
Investment in subsidiaries 

Liabilities and Capital 
Liabilities 

Dividends payable 

Capital 
Preferred stock 
Common stock 
Retained earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 

Condensed Balance Sheets 
December 31, 2017 and 2016 

40 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2017 2016 

1,417,157 $ 1,483,883 
36,052 50,722 

41,984.051 40.322.784 
42,HZ 260 $ 41 852 382 

1,391 ,665 i 1.320,418 
1,391 ,665 1,320,418 

3,868,807 3,868,807 
11,870,322 11,853,125 
26,364,658 24,866,607 

(58,192) (51,568) 
42,045,595 40,536,971 
43 432,260 ~ 41 851 382 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 19. Parent Company Activity, continued 

Condensed Statements of Income 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 

Income 
Equity in undistributed income of subsidiary $ 1,667,891 $ 2,475,089 
Dividends from subsidiary 1,429,000 1,220,000 
Loss on the sale of investment securities (33,127) 
Dividend income 649 

Total income 3,096,891 3,662,611 

Expenses 
Other expense 106,036 116 705 

Income before income taxes 2,990,855 3,545,906 
Income tax benefit (36,052) (50,722) 

Net income 3,026,907 3,596,628 

Pref erred stock dividends (183,423) (183,423) 
Net income available to common stockholders $ 2 8!11 !lS~ $ H l3 205 

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 
For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 

2017 2016 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Net income $ 3,026,907 $ 3,596,628 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to 

net cash provided by operating activities: 
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiary (1,667,891) (2,475,089) 
Loss on the sale of investment securities 33,127 
Net increase (decrease) in other assets 14.670 (32.142) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 1,373,686 1,122,524 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities 530 195 

Net cash provided by investing activities 530.195 

Cash flows from financing activities 
Repurchase of common shares in recapitalization (223,355) 
Cost associated with recapitalization (25,000) 
Common stock option exercised 17,197 
Dividends paid {1 ,457,609) (1 , 141,832) 

Net used by financing activities (1,440.412) (1.390.187) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and due from banks (66,726) 262,532 

Cash and due from banks, beginning 1,483,883 
Cash and due from banks, ending $ 1.4:12,152 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 20. Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events are events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but before financial statements 
are issued. Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional evidence about conditions 
that existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial 
statements. Nonrecognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about conditions that did not exist at 
the date of the balance sheet but arose after that date. Management has reviewed events occurring through March 22, 
2018, the date the financial statements were available to be issued, and no subsequent events occurred requiring accrual 
or disclosure. 
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(CJ elliott davis 

Board of Directors 
Surrey Bancorp 

Report on the Financial Statements 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Surrey Bancorp and its subsidiaries (the 
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, the related 
consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the 
years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We 
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Surrey Bancorp and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Charlotte, North Carolina 
March 22, 2018 

Elliott Davis PLLC I www.elliottdavis.com 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 

General 

Surrey Bancorp was formed on May 1, 2003, and was created for the purpose of acquiring all the outstanding shares of 
common stock ofSutTey Bank & Trust. 

Surrey Bank & Trust was incorporated on July 15, 1996, as a North Carolina banking corporation and opened for business 
on July 22, 1996. The Bank operates for the primary purpose of serving the banking needs of individuals and small to 
medium sized businesses in Surry County, North Carolina and Patrick County, Virginia and the surrounding area, while 
developing personal, hometown associations with these customers. The Bank offers a wide range of banking services 
including checking and savings accounts; commercial, consumer and mortgage loans; safe deposit boxes; and other 
associated services. Through its subsidiary, Surrey Investment Services, Inc., the Bank offers insurance and investment 
products. The Bank's primary sources ofrevenue are interest income from its commercial and real estate lending activities 
and, to a lesser extent, from its investment portfolio. The Bank also earns fees from lending and deposit activities. The 
major expenses of the Bank are interest on deposit accounts and general and administrative expenses, such as salaries, 
occupancy and related expenses. 

Primary Market Area 

The Bank's market area consists of an area extending from Surry and Wilkes Counties, with branches in Mount Airy, 
Pilot Mountain, Elkin and North Wilkesboro, North Carolina, north into the southern portions of CatTOII and Patrick 
Counties, Virginia. Mount Airy is the industrial and trading center of Suny County with a population of approximately 
l 0,500 people living in the city limits and 30,000 in the metropolitan area. The total population of Surry County is 
approximately 73,000 people. Mount Airy is served by Interstate Highways 77 and 74 and U.S. Highways 52 and 601. 
Surry County has a civilian labor force of over 33,000. Major industries include manufacturing, construction, fabricated 
metals, and lumber and wood. North Wilkesboro is the largest town in Wilkes County with a population of approximately 
4,300 people. The total population of Wilkes County is approximately 69,000 people. N011h Wilkesboro is served by 
U.S . Highways 21 and 421 Business. Wilkes County has a civilian labor force ofover 26,000. Major industries include 
manufacturing, retail trade, agriculture and healthcare and social assistance. The Bank has a branch office in Stuart, 
Virginia, which is located in Patrick County, Virginia. The primary industries found in Patrick County are lumber and 
wood, textiles and agricultural. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Operations 

Management's Discussion and Analysis is provided to assist in the understanding and evaluation of the Company's 
financial condition and its results of operations. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the 
Company's financial statements and related notes. 

Forward Looking Statements 

Information in this press release contains "forward-looking statements." These statements reflect management's 
current beliefs as to the expected outcomes of future events and are not guarantees of future performance. These 
statements involve certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions that are difficult to predict with regard to timing, extent, 
likelihood and degree of occurrence. As such, actual results and outcomes may materially differ from what may be 
expressed or forecast in such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause a difference include, among others: 
changes in the national and local economies or market conditions; changes in interest rates, deposit levels, Joan demand 
and asset quality, including real estate and other collateral values; changes in banking regulations and accounting 
principles, policies or guidelines; and the impact of competition from traditional or new sources. These and other 
factors that may emerge could cause decisions and actual results to differ materially from current expectations. Surrey 
Bancorp takes no obligation to revise, update, or clarify forward-looking statements to reflect events or conditions 
after the date of this annual report. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Management believes the policy with respect to the methodology for the determination of the allowance for loan losses 
involves a high degree of complexity. Management must make difficult and subjective judgments, assumptions or 
estimates that could cause reported results to differ materially. This critical policy and its application are periodically 
reviewed with the Audit Committee and Board of Directors. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Results of Operations 

Net income available for common stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2017, was $2,843,484 or $0.73 per 
diluted share outstanding, compared to a $3,413,205 or $0.86 per diluted share outstanding, for the year ended 
December 31, 2016. Earnings for the year ended December 31, 2017, are approximately 16.7% lower than for the 
same period in 2016. The decrease in earnings results from an increase in the provision for income taxes as a result of 
a reduction in the value of net deferred tax assets of approximately $626,000. The reduction was necessitated by the 
enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act in December 2017. Net interest income increased 1.6% from $11,018,850 for 
the year ended 2016 to $11,198,022 at year-end 2017. This increase was due to increases in the Federal funds rate. 
Noninterest income decreased 5.5% to $2,686,128 in 2017, compared to $2,843,811 reported for the year ended 
December 31, 2016. This decrease was due to life insurance proceeds in excess of the cash surrender value of$315,754 
recorded in 2016. The provision for loan losses decreased from $401,403 in 2016 to a provision recapture of $44,866 
in 2017. The net recapture is due to charge off recoveries in 2017 and improved economic conditions which lowered 
environmental factors used in calculating the loan loss reserve. Noninterest expenses increased 4.4%, from $8,002,821 
in 2016, to $8,351 ,960 in 2017. The majority of the increase results from cost associated with cybersecurity, equipment 
purchases, professional fees and fees associated with government guaranteed lending. 

On December 31, 2017, Surrey Bancorp's assets totaled $300,509,941 compared to $277,102,385 on December 31, 
2016. Net loans were $220,395,992 compared to $208,690,443 on December 31, 2016. This net increase was the result 
ofan $11,788,864 increase in loans, a $77,191 increase in net deferred loan cost and a $160,506 net increase in the 
loan loss reserve. Commercial and nonfarm nonresidential loans account for the increase, with nonfarm nonresidential 
loans representing most of the growth. Commercial loans increased $2,675,970 or 4.7% in 2017. Nonfarm 
nonresidential loans increased $11,415,553 or 13.3% in 2017. Overall gross loans increased 5.6% 

Total deposits on December 31, 2017, were $253,655,262 compared to $230,261,545 atthe end of 2016. This increase 
is attributable to an increase in noninterest-bearing demand deposit accounts and interest-bearing demand deposit 
accounts, which increased $13,489,318 and $7,078,679 from December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2017, respectively. 
Overall, noninterest-bearing and interest-bearing demand deposits increased 20. 7% from 2016 totals, while savings 
deposits, including money market accounts, increased 12.9%. Certificates of deposit increased 3.4% from December 
31, 2016 totals. 

Common stockholders' equity increased by $1,508,624, or 4.11%, during the year ended December 31, 2017. The 
increase is comprised of net income of $3,026,907 and proceeds from the exercise of common stock options of 
$17,197. Decreases included the declaration and accrual of preferred and common dividends of $1,528,856 and 
adjustments to accumulated other comprehensive income of $6,624. The net increase resulted in a common stock 
book value of $10.80 per share, up from $10.38 on December 31, 2016. 

The book value per common share is calculated by taking total stockholders' equity, subtracting all preferred equity, 
and then dividing by the total number of common shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period. 

Preferred stockholders' equity remained the same during the period ended December 31, 2017. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Net Interest Income and Average Balances 

Net interest income is the Company' s principal source of earnings. Net interest income is the amount of income generated 
by earning assets (primarily loans and investment securities) less the interest expense incurred on interest-bearing 
liabilities (primarily deposits and FHLB Advances used to fund earning assets). Changes in the volume and mix of 
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, as well as their respective yields and rates, have a significant impact on the 
level of net interest income. Changes in the interest rate environment and the Company's cost of funds also affect net 
interest income. Table I summarizes the major components of net interest income for the years ended December 31 , 
2017, 2016 and 2015 . 

Table 1. Net Interest Income and Average Balances (dollars in thousands) 

Periods End ed December 31 
2017 2016 2015 

Interest Interest Interest 
Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/ Average Income/ Yield/ 
Balance Expense ----9!L Balance Expense ----9!L Balance Expense ----9!L 

lttli!rest-earning assets 
Deposits in othe1 banks $ 41.066 $ 438 1.07% $ 25,795 $ 127 049% $ 42,99 1 $ Ill 026% 
Taxable investment securities 5,334 78 1_47% 5,434 91 1_67% 5,365 99 1. 85% 
Federal funds sold 1.224 12 0,97% 1,241 5 042% 1,238 3 0.23% 
Loans 1 2 214 303 ~ 540% 210 339 _____l_UQJ_ 5.56% 194,182 .......lM2.L 5.61% 

Total interest-earning assets 261 927 ----1l.Q2§ 242,809 ---1.Llli 243 776 ~ 
Yield on average interest-earning assets 462% 49]% 455% 

Noni11teres1-e11mittg assets 
Cash and due from banks 8,499 8,036 7,756 
Property and equipment 5,972 5,306 4,764 
Foreclosed assets 167 258 284 
Interest receivable and other 10,828 10,511 9,027 
Allowance for loan losses ___Q_,§2Q) ~) ---11&Ql) 

Total noninterest-eaming assets 21 776 20 343 18 230 
Total assets ~ ~ ~ 

lttterest-bearing liabilities 
Demand deposits $ 39,121 $ 90 023% $ 36,897 $ 82 0,22% $ 39,890 $ 101 025% 
Savings deposits 61,379 259 0.42% 51,630 212 0.41% 44,846 182 041 % 
Time deposits 68,635 523 076% 68,349 534 0.78% 75 ,066 647 086% 
Fed funds purchased/repurchase 

agreements -% -% -% 
Short-term debt -o/o -% -% 
Long-term debt 541 __ 2_6 4.84% --1.lli __ 7_7 422% ~ _____w. 4.03% 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 169 (,76 ~ __illM1 ~ 164,884 -----1...ill 
Cost of average interest bearing liabilities 053% O 57% ~ 

N011in1£rest-bearing li11/Jilitles 
Demand deposits 67,220 60,290 55,512 
Interest payable and other ----1..lli. -----1,12§ ----1.ill 

Total noninterest-bearing liabilities 71 673 64 086 58 903 
Total liabilities 241,349 222,783 223,787 
Stockholders' equity 42354 40 369 38219 
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity S2ll.7llJ $26.3..UZ Sl62.0.06 
Net interest income ~ _$___J__l_.O]__ ~ 
Net yield on interest-earning assets 428% 4 54% 409% 

I. Includes non-accrual Joans, 
2. Amortization of deferred loan fees a1·e included in interest income 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Net Interest Income and Average Balances, continued 

Yields on interest-earning assets decreased 29 basis points during the year ended December 31, 2017, primarily due 
to a change in asset mix during the year compared to 2016. The cost of interest bearing liabilities decreased by four 
basis points in 2017, as deposit costs continue to fall. As a result the net yield on interest earning assets decreased 
from 4.54% for the year ended December 31, 2016 to 4.28% in 2017. 

Table 2. RateNolume Variance Analysis (dollars in thousands) 

Interest-earning assets 
Deposits in other banks 
Taxable investments securities 
Federal funds sold 
Loans 

Total 
Interest-bearing liabilities 

Demand deposits 
Savings deposits 
Time deposits 
Federal funds purchased/ 

Repurchase agreements 
Short-term debt 
Long-term debt 

Total 
"N'etinterestincome 

20 17 oml!ared to 2016 2016 Coml!ared to 2015 
Interest Interest 
Income/ Attributed Income/ Attributed 
Expense Variance to Expense Variance to 
Variance Rate Volume Variance Rate Volume 

$ 311 $ 206 $ 
(12) (JO) 

6 6 

105 $ 
(2) 

__ ...... (_,_,13=3,.,,) __ _,_,(3"-'6=5) --~2=3=2 
172 -~(~16~3) --=33~5 

8 
47 

(11) 

2 
6 

(13 ) 

6 
41 
2 

17 $ 
(8) 

30 $ 
(9) 
2 

(13) 
I 

2 
810 --->.-'(8=8) --~8=9~8 
821 

(19) 
30 

(112) 

--~(6~5) --=88=6 

(10) 
2 

(57) 

(9) 
28 

(55) 

__ _,..,(5=1) - -~l~O ----'--'f 6~1) _ ___.,("""'12=8) - - ~9 (137) 
--~(~7) --~5 __ _,_(1=2) (229) (56) _ __,_(~17..:.3_) 
$ 179 $ 068) $ 347 $ I 050 "'=$==("'=9) ,,.,$_='1,.,,0""5~9 

As discussed above, the Company's net interest income is affected by the change in the amount and mix of interest­
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities (referred to as "volume change") as well as by changes in yields earned 
on interest-earning assets and rates paid on deposits and borrowed funds (referred to as "rate change"). The table 
above presents, for the periods indicated, a summary of changes in interest income and interest expense for the major 
categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the amounts of change attributable to variations 
in volumes and rates. Changes attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate have been allocated 
proportionately to the changes due to volume and rate, respectively . 

Analysis of Financial Condition 

Average interest earning assets increased from December 31, 2016, to December 31, 2017. Average earning assets 
amounted to $261,927,443 for 2017, up from a total of$242,808,539 for 2016. Total earning assets represented 92.3% of 
total average assets at December 31, 2017, unchanged from the 92.3% at the end of 2016. However, the mix of average 
earning assets changed dramatically from December 31, 2016, to December 31, 2017. Average net loans decreased in 
relationship to total average assets and as a percent of average earning assets in 2017. Average loans as a percentage of 
average earning assets decreased from 79.9% in 2016 to 75.5% in 2017. This change in the average earning asset mix 
contributed to the decrease in the yield on average earning assets to 4.62% in 2017 from 4.91 % in 2016. TI1e average cost 
of funds decreased four basis points, including noninterest bearing deposits during 2017. The decrease in asset yields 
coupled with small reduction in the cost of funds resulted in a 26 basis point decrease in the net yield on average earning 
assets from 2016 to 2017 as shown in Table I. The net yield reduction results from a movement in mix from higher 
yielding loans to lower yielding interest-bearing bank balances. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Analysis of Financial Condition, continued 

Interest rates charged on loans vary with the degree ofrisk, maturity and amount of the loan. Competitive pressures, 
money market rates, availability of funds, and government regulation also influence interest rates. On average, loans 
yielded 5 .40% for the year ended December 31, 2017, compared to an average yield of 5 .56% in 2016. This reduction 
in loan yields is attributable a more competitive lending market in 2017. 

Provision for Loan Losses 

The allowance for loan losses is established to provide for expected losses in the Bank's loan portfolio. Loan losses and 
recoveries are charged or credited directly to the allowance. Management determines the provision for loan losses 
required to maintain an allowance adequate to provide for probable losses. Management regularly reviews asset quality 
and re-evaluates the allowance for loan losses. However, no assurance can be given as to unforeseen adverse economic 
conditions or other circumstances that could result in increased provisions in the future. Additionally, regulatory 
examiners may require the Company to recognize additions to the allowance based upon their judgment about the loan 
portfolio and other information available to them at the time of their examinations. 

The provision for loan losses decreased from $401,403 in 2016 to a provision recapture of$44,866 in 2017. The net 
recapture is due to charge off recoveries in 2017 and improved economic conditions which lowered environmental 
factors used in calculating the loan loss reserve. Net recoveries amounted to $205,372 in 2017 compared to net charge 
offs of $340,811 in 2016, a $546,182 difference. The 2016 provision also included a provision of $27,819 provision 
attributable to Freedom Finance, LLC which was disposed ofin July of 2016. Further improving the credit quality of 
the loan portfolio was the increase in government guaranteed loans. The guaranteed portion of the loan portfolio 
increased from $46,827,965 at December 31, 2016 to $49,591,713 at December 31, 2017. 

A consolidated provision for loan losses of $401 ,403 was made in 2016, an increase of $158,958, or 65.6% from the 
$242,445 provided during 2015. 

The allowance for loan losses was $3,848,006 or 1.72% of total loans outstanding at December 31, 2017. This compares 
to an allowance for loan losses of$3,687,500, or 1.74% of total loans outstanding at December 31, 2016. The reserve 
decreased as a percentage of total loans outstanding due to net charge off recoveries and adjustments in environmental 
factors that reflect an improving economy, positive trends in delinquencies and improved credit quality among other 
factors. 

When the guaranteed portion of the loans (Table 3) for which the Bank has no credit exposure, is removed from the 
equation the loan loss reserve is approximately 2.21 % of outstanding loans. At December 31, 2016 the loan loss reserve 
percentage was 2.23% of loans net of government guarantees. 

The level of reserve is established based upon management's evaluation of historical loss data and the effects of certain 
environmental factors on the loan portfolio. The historical loss portion of the reserve is computed using the average 
loss data from the past three years applied to its corresponding category of loans. However, historical losses only 
reflect a portion of the Bank's loan loss reserve. The environmental factors represent risk from external economic 
influences on the credit quality of the loan portfolio. These factors include the movement of interest rates, 
unemployment rates, past due and charge off trends, loan grading migrations, movement in collateral values and the 
Bank's exposure to ce1tain loan concentrations. Positive or negative movements in any of these factors have an effect 
on the credit quality of the loan portfolio. As a result, management continues to actively monitor the Bank's asset 
quality affected by these environmental factors 

Management believes that its loan portfolio is diversified so that a downturn in a particular market or industry will not 
have a significant impact on the loan portfolio or the Bank's financial condition. Management believes that its provision 
and reserve offer an adequate allowance for loan losses. 
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Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Government Guaranteed Loans 

Management recognizes the inherent risk associated with commercial real estate and commercial lending, including a 
borrower's actual results of operations not corresponding to those projected by the borrower when the loan was funded; 
economic factors such as the number of housing starts and increases in interest rates, etc.; depression of collateral 
values; and completion of projects within the original cost and time estimates. The Bank mitigates some of that risk 
by actively seeking government guarantees on these loans. Loan guarantees by loan class are shown in Table 3. 

Table 3. Guaranteed Portion of Loans 

Construction and development 
1-4 family residential 
Multi-family 
Farmland 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 

Total real estate 

Agricultural 
Commercial and industrial 
Consumer 

Total loans 

Construction and development 
1-4 family residential 
Multi-family 
Farmland 
Nonfarm, nonresidential 

Total real estate 

Agricultural 
Commercial and industrial 
Consumer 

Total loans 

Table 4. Key Financial Ratios 

Return on average assets 
Return on average equity 
Average equity to average assets 
Dividends declared on common stock 

as a percent of net income available 
to common stockholders 
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December 31, 
2017 

$ 5,834,743 
46,008,882 

3,014,587 
8,886,400 

97.260.198 
161,004,810 

858,704 
59,141,603 

2 939 769 
$ 223,944,886 

December 31, 
2016 

$ 11,864,585 
43,694,728 

1,597,922 
7,750,022 

85,844,645 
150,751,902 

1,451,054 
56,465,633 

3 487 433 
_$____2.l.2,15..6 02 2 

2017 

1.07% 
7.15% 

14.93% 

47.32% 

Guaranteed Portion 
Amount Percentai:;e 

$ 74,559 1.28% 
297,316 0.65% 

-% 
1,117,671 12.58% 

36,040,738 37.06% 
37,530,284 23.31% 

-% 
12,061,429 20.39% 

-% 
$ 49,5.2..1,713 221 4% 

Guaranteed Portion 
Amount Percentai:;e 

$ 83,070 0.70% 
308,987 0.71% 

-% 
861,165 11.11% 

33.886.260 39.47% 
35,139,482 23.31% 

-% 
11,688,483 20.70% 

-% 
$ 46 827 965 22 0 

December 31, 
2016 2015 

1.37% 1.17% 
8.91% 8.01% 

15.34% 14.59% 

37.33% 33.30% 



Board of Directors and Officers 

Board of Directors 

Edward C. Ashby, III ..... ......... .... ... ............ ... ........ .. .. ............ .. .. ................. .. ............ ..... ..... ... .... .. . Surrey Bank & Trust 

Elizabeth Johnson Lovill .............................. .. ... ....... ........ ... ......... ..... Town and Country Builders of Mount Airy, Inc. 

Robert H. Moody ............... ... ....... .......... ...... ..................... ...... .. ...... ... ... ...... ... ... .. ............ Moody Funeral Services, Inc. 

Gene Rees ..... .............. .... ................. ... ..... .. ................. ....... ....... ......... ...... ...... .... ...................... ... F. Rees Company, Inc. 

Tamra W. Thomas .. .. .. .... .................. .... ....... ........ ...... .... ..... .. ... .... ..... ..... .. ...... .......... ........ .... .......... .................... Retired 

Tom G. Webb ............ .... .. .......... ... ... .. .. .......... ............. .... .... .. ..... .. ... ....... ..... ....... ....... ... ... ..... ... Westwood Partners, LLC 

Buddy Williams .... .................................................. ... ......... ... .. ..... ... ..... .... ............ ....... .. .. .. .. ... ...... ...... ... Ten Oaks, LLC 

Bank Officers 

Robert H. Moody ... ..... ........ .. ... .... .. ............. ........... .. ... ...... ... ... .. .......... ..... ..... ... ...................... .... ... .. ............. .. Chairman 

Edward C. Ashby, III .... .. .. ... ....... ..... ......... ... ....... ... .................................................... .......... ... .. ... .. President and CEO 

Peter A. Pequeno ... ... ........ .................................................. ............... ..... .... ............... ... Senior Vice President and CLO 

Mark H. Towe .. ...... .. ............ ...... ..... .. ..... ... ............. ... .. .. .... .... .. ...... ...... .... .. Senior Vice President, Treasurer and CFO 

Elizabeth S. Atkins .................................. .. ... ...... .... .... ........ ... ..... ..... ...... ........ ...... ........... .... .................. . Vice President 

Tina Butcher .. ....... ..... .... ..... ............................... .. .. .... .... ......... .. ............ .. ... ... ......................................... Vice President 

Matthew B. Daye ... .... .. .. ... ............... .... .. ............. ....... .... .. .. .... ... .... ...... ..... ........... ................. .. ........... ...... Vice President 

Lesa Hensley ......... ...... ...... ..... ....... ........ .. ... ....... .. ..... .... ..... ... .... ..... ...... ... ....... ...... .......... .... ........ ......... ...... Vice President 

William Johnson ... ............ ..... .... ............. ... ........... ................ ............................... .... ... ........ ... .... ............ Vice President 

Jared Moser ... ..... ... ... ...... .. ........................... ... ......... .... ... .. .. ... .......... ........ ........... ....... ..... ... ....... .. .... .... ... . Vice President 

Mark Dodson .. ...... .... ... ..... ....... .............. .. .... ........... ... ..... ... ....... .... .. ....... .. ... ..... .... .. ......... .. ....... .. .... .......... Vice President 
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Stockholder Information 

Ammal Meeting 

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held Thursday, April 26, 20 I 8, at 10:00 a.m. at Cross Creek Country Club, 
1129 Greenhill Road, Mount Airy, North Carolina. 

Request. for lnformatitJ11 

Requests for information should be directed to Mr. Mark H. Towe, Senior Vice President and CFO, at Surrey Bank & 
Trust, Post Office Box 1227, Mount Airy, North Carolina, 27030; telephone (336) 783-3900. 

J11depe11de111 Registered Public Accou11ti11g Firm 

Elliott Davis, PLLC 

Stock Transfer Agent 

Issuer Direct Corporation 
Certified Public Accountants 

500 East Morehead Street, Suite 700 
Charlotte, No1th Carolina 28202 

500 Perimeter Park Drive, Suite D 
Morrisville, NC 27560 

Federal Deposit Jusura11ce Corporation 

The Bank is a member of the FDIC. This statement has not been reviewed, or confirmed for accuracy or relevance by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 

145 North Renfro Street 
Mount Airy, North Carolina 

(336) 783-3900 

2050 Rockford Street 
Mount Airy, North Carolina 

(336) 783-3940 

1096 Main Street 
North Wilkesboro, North Carolina 

(336) 818-1299 

Banking Offices 

1280 West Pine Street 
Mount Airy, North Carolina 

(336) 783-3920 

653 South Key Street 
Pilot Mountain, North Carolina 

(336) 368-1122 

Mortgage Loa11 Cemer 
199 North Renfro Street 

Mount Airy, North Carolina 
(336) 783-3933 

Surrep lnvestme11t Services 
I 45 North Renfro Street 

Mount Airy, North Carolina 
(336) 783-3938 

Swc.k lnformatio11 

940 Woodland Drive 
Stuart, Virginia 
(276) 694-4825 

393 CC Camp Road 
Elkin, North Carolina 

(336) 526-1803 

SB & T Insurance 
199 North Renfro Street 

Mount Airy, North Carolina 
(336) 783-3939 

Market Information. The Company's common stock began trading on May I, 2003. As of March 22, 2018, there 
were approximately 758 holders of record, not including the number of persons or entities whose stock is held in 
nominee or street name through various brokerage firms or banks. The Bank's stock is traded on the Over-The­
Counter Pink Sheets under the symbol SRYB. 

Stock Buyback. On February 3, 2016, Surrey Bancorp announced that the Company's Board of Directors has 
authorized the repurchase of up to the lesser of $550,000 in aggregate purchase price and 50,000 shares of the 
Company's common stock, representing less than 2 percent of the Company's shares outstanding as of December 31, 
2017. The shares may be purchased in the open market at prevailing market prices or by other means in accordance 
with federal securities laws, from time to time depending upon market conditions and other factors. There is no 
guarantee as to the number of shares that will be repurchased, and the stock repurchase program may be extended, 
suspended, or discontinued at any time without notice at the Company's discretion. There were no shares repurchased 
during the year ended December 31, 2017. 
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